# CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

FOR

# PK-19-01 SUNRISE PARK PATH

Issue Date: Monday, June 24, 2019

**Due Date:** 2:30 p.m., Tuesday, July 9, 2019

Parks and Recreation Director .......Kim Lyddane
Project Manager ......Rick Barnett
Purchasing Coordinator .......Diane Murzynski, CPPO

# CITY OF ALBANY **PK-19-01, Sunrise Park Path**

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS
BIDDER'S SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST
INVITATION TO BID
PROPOSAL4
SCHEDULE OF CONTRACT PRICES
BID BOND
EMPLOYEE DRUG TESTING PROGRAM CERTIFICATION
FIRST-TIER SUBCONTRACTOR DISCLOSURE
SAMPLE CONTRACT
PERFORMANCE BOND
PAYMENT BOND
SPECIAL PROVISIONS:
SECTION I: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS AND TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS17
SECTION II: STATE AND FEDERAL CONTRACTING LAW
SECTION III: FEDERAL COMPLIANCE PROVISIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS USING HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD) FUNDING
SECTION IV: SITE WORK TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS
SECTION V: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS – BID ITEMS48
LIST OF APPENDICES:
APPENDIX A - HUD 4010: FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS
APPENDIX B - CONTRACTOR'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF FORM HUD-4010
APPENDIX C - DAVIS-BACON PREVAILING WAGE RATES
APPENDIX D - CERTIFICATE FROM CONTRACTOR APPOINTING OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE TO SUPERVISE PAYMENT OF EMPLOYEE - HUD FORM 5282
APPENDIX E - CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
APPENDIX F - OREGON DEPARTMENT OF STATE LANDS STATE LANDS PERMIT - included as separate document
APPENDIX G – U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS REPORT - included as separate document
APPENDIX H – DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 401 PERMIT - included as separate document

CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS (sized 11" x 17" - attached as separate file)

#### BIDDER'S SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST

Bids must be submitted by the time designated and the address listed in the advertisement for the Invitation to Bid at the City Hall Parks and Recreation Department/Information counter and marked received by City staff indicating the time and date as shown on the City Bid Clock in the Parks Department. Any bid submitted after the designated closing time or to any other location will be determined nonresponsive and will not be opened. It is the responsibility of the Bidder to deliver the bid by the indicated deadline to the designated location.

If the Bidder submits a proposal via a delivery service (FedEx, UPS, USPS, etc.), the required sealed envelope must be enclosed in the delivery service packaging and the Project Title of the bid should be written on the outside delivery service packaging. The City is not responsible for late or mishandled delivery, regardless of the method of delivery.

Bids should be delivered to and stamped received by the Parks & Recreation Department Counter staff at City Hall to be considered Responsive. Bidder is solely responsible for the bid to be delivered to the correct location by the correct time.

If contractor obtains these documents by means of a website or copied from a Plan Center, it is the responsibility of the contractor to check for any addendums to this contract prior to bid opening. To be notified of addendums, contractor may call 541-917-7676 and request to be added to the plan holders list.

Failure to include any signed Addendums could result in the disqualification of your bid.

All bids must be submitted on City-provided forms that do not contain unauthorized alterations.

l bids shall include the following submittals or may be considered non-responsive:
Signed Proposal (two pages) - with all applicable blanks completed
Completed Schedule of Contract Prices - signed by an authorized representative of the company who can "executive bids"
Bid Bond – using City-provided Bid Bond form with no alterations
Employee Drug Testing Certification form
Contractor's Acknowledgement of Receipt of HUD-4010 and Compliance with Federal Laws – Appendix B
Certification Regarding Lobbying – Appendix E
Signed Addenda (if Addenda have been issued)
bmitted within two hours after bid closing time (required under ORS 279C.370):
First-Tier Subcontractor Disclosure form – signed and if "none" indicate as such

Other than what is listed above, it is not necessary to submit any additional pages with the bid.



# NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS CITY OF ALBANY

#### INVITATION TO BID

Category of Bid: Parks and Recreation Projects Engineer's Estimate: \$75,000 Bids due at 2:30 p.m., July 9, 2019

The City of Albany hereby extends an invitation to submit bids for: **PK-19-01, Sunrise Park Path and Lighting:** Improvements to an existing park including a new path with lighting and removing existing path.

Bids submitted shall be filed in sealed envelopes and received at the City of Albany Parks & Recreation counter, not later than 2:30 p.m. on Tuesday, July 9, 2019, addressed to the attention of Diane Murzynski, Purchasing Coordinator, at Albany City Hall, Finance Department, 333 Broadalbin Street SW, Albany, OR 97321. The outside of the envelopes shall plainly identify: (1) the Project name, (2) the Bid Opening time and date, (3) the Bidder's name, and (4) the Contractor's license number (per ORS 701). Immediately following the filing deadline, the bids shall be opened and publicly read in the Calapooia Room of City Hall. Bid totals will be posted on the City's website at <a href="http://www.cityofalbany.net/departments/finance/city-purchasing/bids-rfps-rfgs">http://www.cityofalbany.net/departments/finance/city-purchasing/bids-rfps-rfgs</a>.

Contract bid documents may be examined at the Office of the Parks and Recreation Director, City Hall, 333 Broadalbin Street SW, Albany, Oregon, 541-917-7763; downloaded from the City of Albany website at <a href="http://www.cityofalbany.net/departments/finance/city-purchasing/bids-rfps-rfqs">http://www.cityofalbany.net/departments/finance/city-purchasing/bids-rfps-rfqs</a>; or a printed set may be purchased for \$35. It is imperative those who download the contract bid documents check the website regularly for addenda, clarifications, and other pertinent notifications. All who are known by the City of Albany to have received a complete set of the contract bid documents will receive notification when additional items are posted. Please call 541-917-7676 to be added to the Plan Holder's list.

Each bidder must have access to a current set of City of Albany *Standard Construction Specifications*, which can be found on the City's website at <a href="http://www.cityofalbany.net/departments/public-works/engineering/standard-construction-specifications">http://www.cityofalbany.net/departments/public-works/engineering/standard-construction-specifications</a> or a printed set may be purchased for \$100. All public improvements are required to conform to these specifications and bid prices shall reflect these specifications. For project information, call Rick Barnett at 541-917-7763.

All City contracts contain a statement declaring that the bidder agrees to comply with the provisions of ORS 279C.800 through 279C.870 regarding payment of prevailing wages. The City's contract contains a clause which incorporates by reference all of the provisions of ORS Chapter 279C which are applicable to public contracts. Bidders are expected to be familiar with these provisions including, but not limited to, recent changes to ORS Chapter 279C.

This project is funded by a Community Development Block Grant from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. In addition, City contracts contain a statement declaring that the bidder agrees to comply with the federal labor standards provisions of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts (40 USC 3141-3148; and 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, 4, 5, and 7) and State provision required by ORS 279C.800 through 279C.870 regarding payment of prevailing wages. The Contractor must certify that it will abide by the "Federal Labor Standard Provisions" outlined in Form HUD-4010, the "Payment of Employees" outlined in HUD Form-5282 and sign the "Certification Regarding Lobbying" as imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code.

The Bidder is required to comply with and adhere to all applicable Federal laws and regulations and Community Development Block Grant program requirements described in 24 CFR 570 Part K, except that the contractor does not assume the City's environmental review responsibilities described in 24 CFR Part 560.605, and for initiating the review process under the provisions of 24 CFR Part 52.

No bid shall be received or considered unless the bidder is licensed by the Construction Contractors Board for construction projects or licensed with the State Landscape Contractors Board for landscaping projects. A 10% bid bond, certified check, or cashier's check shall accompany each bid on all projects and shall be forfeited if the bidder fails to enter into a Contract with the City of Albany within ten (10) days after the date of the Notice of Award.

DATED THIS 24TH DAY OF JUNE 2019.

Diane M. Murzynski, CPPO, CPPB, Purchasing Coordinator

PUBLISH: Daily Journal of Commerce on June 24, 2019 Albany Democrat-Herald on June 24, 2019

PK-19-01 Sunrise Park Path
INVITATION TO BID
Contract Documents
Page 3 of 49

#### **PROPOSAL**

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council Albany, Oregon 97321

#### BIDDER'S DECLARATION AND UNDERSTANDING

The undersigned Bidder declares that the Contract Documents for the construction of the proposed improvement have been carefully examined; that the site has been personally inspected; that the Bidder is satisfied as to the quantities of materials, items of equipment and conditions or work involved including the fact that the description of the quantities of work and materials as included herein is brief and is intended only to indicate the general nature of such items and to identify the said quantities with the detailed requirements of the Contract Documents; and that the Bidder's proposal is made according to the provisions and under the terms of the Contract Documents, which documents are hereby made a part of this proposal.

The Bidder further declares that the only persons or parties interested in this proposal are those named herein; that this proposal is in all respects fair and without fraud; that it is made without collusion with any official of the City of Albany, and that the proposal is made without any connection or collusion with any person making another proposal on this Contract.

The Bidder further declares by the signing of this proposal that all the provisions required by ORS 279C.800 through 279C.870 relating to the payment of prevailing wage rates for work performed under the Contract with the City of Albany shall be complied with.

The Bidder further agrees that its own judgment has been exercised regarding the interpretation of subsurface information and all data which it believes pertinent from the Engineer, Owner, and other sources in arriving at these conclusions have been utilized.

The Bidder, if awarded the contract, also declares by the signing of this proposal, to comply with:

- All of the Federal labor standards provisions required by the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts (40 USC 3141-3148; and 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, 4, 5, and 7) and State provisions required by ORS 279C.800 through 279C.870 relating to the payment of prevailing wage rates for work performed under the Contract with the City of Albany, and certifies that it will abide by the "Federal Labor Standard Provisions" outlined in the form HUD-4010 found in the Appendices of these contract documents.
- All applicable Federal laws and regulations described in 24 CFR 570 Part K, except that the Contractor does not
  assume the City's environmental review responsibilities described in 24 CFR Part 560.605; and for initiating the
  review process under the provisions of 24 CFR Part 52.
- The Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C., 1251, *et seq.*, as amended, 1318 relating to inspection, monitoring, entry, reports, and information, as well as other requirements specified in Section 114 and Section 308.
- For all contracts and subcontracts exceeding \$100,000, the bidder agrees to comply with the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 USC 1857 *et seq.*, the Federal Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251 *et seq.*), and the regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency in 40 CFR Part 15, as amended, and must comply with the training, employment and business opportunities as specified Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u).

#### CONTRACT EXECUTION, BONDS, AND INSURANCE

The Bidder agrees that if this proposal is accepted:

- A Contract with the City of Albany, Oregon, will be executed, within ten (10) days after the date of the Notice of Award, in the form of Contract annexed hereto, and will at that time, deliver to the City of Albany the 100% Performance Bond and 100% Payment Bond, and will, to the extent of this proposal, furnish all machinery, tools, apparatus and other means of construction and do the work and furnish all the materials necessary to complete all work as specified or shown in the Contract Documents.
- A Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification (W-9) will be completed as a condition of the City's
  obligation to make payment. In the event the Bidder shall fail to complete and return the W-9 to the City, payment
  to Bidder may be delayed, or the City may, in its discretion, terminate the Contract.

PK-19-01 Sunrise Park Path
PROPOSAL
Contract Documents
Page 4 of 49

- <u>ACH Direct Payment Authorization</u>. The City prefers to pay Contractor invoices via electronic funds transfers through the Automated Clearing House (ACH) network. To initiate this more timely, efficient, and secure payment method, Contractors must complete the City's ACH Vendor Direct Payment Authorization Form. These forms are available on the City website at <a href="https://www.cityofalbany.net/images/stories/finance/eft\_form.pdf">https://www.cityofalbany.net/images/stories/finance/eft\_form.pdf</a>. Information provided on the form is exempt from public records disclosure under ORS 192.501(27).
- <u>Certificates of Insurance.</u> The Bidder agrees to furnish the Owner, before commencing the work under this Contract, the certificates of insurance as specified in the *Standard Construction Specifications*.

#### START OF CONSTRUCTION AND CONTRACT COMPLETION DATE

If awarded this contract, the Bidder agrees to begin work within 10 calendar days after the date of the Notice to Proceed for the Contract and to complete the construction, in all respects, as set forth in the Special Provisions of these Contract Documents.

#### **LIQUIDATED DAMAGES**

In the event the Bidder is awarded the Contract and shall fail to complete the work within the time stated above or extended time agreed upon, as more particularly set forth in the Contract Documents, liquidated damages shall be paid to the City of Albany, Oregon, as provided under General Requirements, Subsection 108.06.00 of the City of Albany *Standard Construction Specifications*.

Standard Construction Specifications.
BID BOND Accompanying this proposal is a certified check, cashier's check or Bidder's bond in the sum of (10% of Bid Total)  Dollars (\$
Dollars (\$), according to the General Requirements of the Contract Documents which is to be forfeited as liquidated damages, if, in the event that this proposal is accepted, and the Bidder shall fail to execute the Contract and furnish satisfactory Performance and Payment Bond under the conditions and within the time specified in the Contract Documents; otherwise said check or bond is to be returned to the Bidder.
SURETY  If the Bidder is awarded a construction Contract on this proposal, the Surety who provides the Performance Bond will be whose address is (street and city) and
Payment Bond will be whose address is (street and city)
LUMP SUM OR UNIT PRICE WORK  The Bidder further proposes to accept as full payment for the work proposed herein the amounts computed under the provisions of the Contract Documents and based on the following lump sum or unit price amounts, it being expressly understood that the unit prices are independent of the exact quantities involved. The Bidder agrees that the lump sum prices and the unit prices represent a true measure of the labor and materials required to perform the work, including all allowances for overhead and profit for each type and unit of work called for in these Contract Documents.
BIDDER The name of the Bidder submitting this proposal is
business at (street and city), which is the address to which all communications concerned with this proposal and with the Contract shall be sent.
In accordance with ORS 279A.120, Bidder hereby declares that it (circle correct designation) is / is not a resident Bidder. The names of the principal officers of the corporation submitting this proposal, or of the partnership, or of all persons interested in this proposal as principals are as follows:

PK-19-01 Sunrise Park Path
PROPOSAL
Contract Documents
Page 5 of 49

If Sole Proprietor or Partnership: IN WITNESS hereto the under 2019.	rsigned has set his/her hand this day of
Signature of Bidder	Title
If Corporation: IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned agreement on behalf of the corporation by the officer named	
By	name of corporation
Name	:
Title	(please print name) :

#### **SCHEDULE OF CONTRACT PRICES**

ITEM #	BID ITEMS*	APPROX. QUANTITY	UNIT OF MEASURE	UNIT PRICE DOLLARS/CENTS	TOAL AMOUNT DOLLARS/CENTS
1.	Mobilization	1	Lump Sum		
2.	Erosion Prevention & Sediment Control and Tree Protection Fencing	1	Lump Sum		
3.	Concrete Sidewalk - Standard	80	Square Yard		
4.	Concrete Sidewalk – Vehicle Load	430	Square Yard		
5.	Conduit, wiring and all other electrical equipment as required to extend electrical service to seven light locations	1	Lump Sum		
6.	Concrete Light Pole Bases	7	Each		
	SUM OF EXTENDED TO	OTALS			

NOTE: Subject to change if addition or extensions are in error.

 $*Reference\ Technical\ Specification,\ Section\ IV.$ 

Bidder's Signature	Company Name (please print)	Date
-		
Bidder's Name (please print)	Mailing Address (please print)	CCB License Number
Bidder's Title (please print)	City, State Zip	Federal Tax ID Number
Telephone No.:	Fax No.:	Email:

#### **BID BOND**

BOND NO		
AMOUNT OF BID: \$		
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, t	hat	
hereinafter called the PRINCIPAL, and		
a corporation duly organized under the laws of t	he State of	having its principal
place of business at		, in the State of
, and authorized to do unto the City of Albany, Oregon, hereinafter cal	led the OBLIGEE, in the sum o	of
	DOLLARS (\$	), for the payment
of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors these presents.	, administrators, successors, and	assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by
THE CONDITION OF THIS BOND IS SUC	Н ТНАТ:	
WHEREAS, the PRINCIPAL is herewith subm Bid Proposal, by reference thereto, being hereby		for <b>PK-19-01 Sunrise Park Path</b> , said
NOW, THEREFORE, if the Bid Proposal subn PRINCIPAL, and if the PRINCIPAL shall executed and Payment Bond as required by the Contract I shall be void; if the PRINCIPAL shall fail to execute agrees to pay to the OBLIGEE the said sum as	cute the proposed Contract and Documents within the time fixed cute the proposed Contract and	shall furnish such Performance Bond by the documents, then this obligation furnish the bond, the SURETY hereby
Signed and sealed this day of _	20	019.
PRINCIPAL	SURETY	
By:	By:	
		Attorney in Fact

#### EMPLOYEE DRUG TESTING PROGRAM CERTIFICATION

**ORS 279C.505 (2)** requires that bidders shall demonstrate and disclose to the City of Albany that he/she has an employee drug testing program in place before a public contract can be awarded.

Therefore, by signing this Certification, the Bidder does hereby certify and confirm that, as the proposed general contractor for City of Albany Project <u>PK-19-01 Sunrise Park Path</u>, that he/she has an employee drug testing program in place that is consistent with, and satisfies the intent of, the above-referenced legislation.

CONTRACTOR: _		
BY:		
TITLE:		
DATE:		

#### FIRST-TIER SUBCONTRACTOR DISCLOSURE

PROJECT NAME: Sunrise Park Path	BID NUMBER	<u>PK-19-01</u>
BID CLOSING DATE: July 9, 2019	<b>TIME:</b> 2:30 p.r	n.
This form must be submitted at the location specified in the Is within two working hours after the advertised bid closing time.	nvitation to Bid on the adver	tised bid closing date and
List below the name of each subcontractor that will be furnish that is required to be disclosed, the category of work that the subcontract.		
Enter " <b>NONE</b> " if there are no subconta ( <i>Attach additional she</i>		ed.
Failure to submit this signed form by the disclosure A non-responsive bid will not b		esponsive bid.
Subcontractor's Name	Category of Work	Dollar Value
1.	Category or work	\$
2.		\$
3.		\$
4.		\$

Form submitted by (bidder name):		Phone No.:	
, , ,	(Signature)		
Contact Name:	Company		

**ORS 279C.370 First-tier subcontractor disclosure.** (1)(a) Within two working hours after the date and time of the deadline when bids are due to a contracting agency for a public improvement contract, a bidder shall submit to the contracting agency a disclosure of the first-tier subcontractors that:

- (A) Will be furnishing labor or will be furnishing labor and materials in connection with the public improvement contract; and
- (B) Will have a contract value that is equal to or greater than five percent of the total project bid or \$15,000, whichever is greater, or \$350,000 regardless of the percentage of the total project bid.
- (b) For each contract to which this subsection applies, the contracting agency shall designate a deadline for submission of bids that has a date on a Tuesday, Wednesday or Thursday and a time between 2 p.m. and 5 p.m., except that this paragraph does not apply to public contracts for maintenance or construction of highways, bridges or other transportation facilities.
- (c) This subsection applies only to public improvement contracts with a value, estimated by the contracting agency, of more than \$100,000.
- (d) This subsection does not apply to public improvement contracts that have been exempted from competitive bidding requirements under ORS 279C.335 (2).
- (2) The disclosure of first-tier subcontractors under subsection (1) of this section must include the name of each subcontractor, the category of work that each subcontractor will perform and the dollar value of each subcontract. The information shall be disclosed in substantially the following [above] form:
- (3) A contracting agency shall accept the subcontractor disclosure. The contracting agency shall consider the bid of any contractor that does not submit a subcontractor disclosure to the contracting agency to be a nonresponsive bid and may not award the contract to the contractor. A contracting agency is not required to determine the accuracy or the completeness of the subcontractor disclosure.
- (4) After the bids are opened, the subcontractor disclosures must be made available for public inspection.
- (5) A contractor may substitute a first-tier subcontractor under the provisions of ORS 279C.585.
- (6) A subcontractor may file a complaint under ORS 279C.590 based on the disclosure requirements of subsection (1) of this section.

State of Oregon WH-179 (08-10-10)

5.

7.

8.

9.

\$ \$

\$

\$

\$

#### **SAMPLE CONTRACT**

THIS CONTRACT is made between the CITY OF ALBANY, a municipal corporation, hereinafter called "City" and \_\_\_\_\_\_\_, hereinafter called "Contractor."

#### WITNESSETH:

The Contractor, in consideration of the sums to be paid and other covenants herein contained, agrees to perform and complete the work herein described and to furnish all necessary machinery, tools, apparatus, equipment, supplies, materials, and labor and perform all work in accordance with the applicable *Standard Construction Specifications*, the Special Specifications (aka Specifications, Special Provisions) found herewith, and in accordance with such alterations or modifications of the same as may be made by the City, and according to such directions as may from time to time be made or given by the Engineer under the authority and within the meaning and purpose of this Contract. This agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Contractor.

The applicable Drawings, the applicable *Standard Construction Specifications*, all sections of Special Provisions, and the Schedule of Contract Prices bound herewith are hereby specifically referred to and by reference made a part hereof and shall by such reference have the same force and effect as though all of the same were fully inserted herein.

The Contractor shall faithfully complete and perform all of the obligations of this Contract, and in particular, shall promptly, as due, make payment of all just debts and obligations incurred in the performance of said Contract and shall not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the City.

The Contractor shall furnish to the City a 100% Performance Bond and a 100% Payment Bond. In addition to the required Payment Bond and Performance Bond, unless exempt under ORS 279C.836 (7), (8), or (9), the contractor is required to file a \$30,000 Public Works Bond with the Construction Contractor's Board to be used exclusively for unpaid wages determined to be due by BOLI. The general contractor is required to verify that subcontractors have filed a public works bond before permitting a subcontractor to start work on a project unless exempt under ORS 279C.836 (7), (8) or (9).

The Contractor, its subcontractors, if any, and all employers working under this Contract are subject employers under the Oregon Workers' Compensation Law and shall comply with ORS 656.017, which requires them to provide workers' compensation coverage for all their subject workers.

The Contractor agrees to protect, indemnify, and hold harmless the City against any and all loss, claims, or suits (including costs and attorney's fees) for or on account of injury to or death of persons, damage to, or destruction of property belonging to either the City or others occurring by reason of the act or neglect of the Contractor, Contractor's employees, or agents (including subcontractors) in connection with the performance of this Contract.

It is expressly understood that this Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of Oregon. The statutes of the State of Oregon for public works contracts, specifically but not exclusively ORS Chapter 279 A-C as amended or superseded, including the latest additions and revisions, are incorporated by reference as part of the contract documents, and the party contracting with the City of Albany hereby covenants and agrees to comply with all of the obligations and conditions applicable to public contracts pursuant to ORS 279 A-C, et seq, as though each obligation or condition were set forth fully herein. In addition, if the contract identified above calls for a public improvement as that term is defined by ORS 279A.010, the party contracting with the City of Albany further agrees to comply with all obligations and conditions applicable to public contracts for public improvements pursuant to ORS 279C, et seq, as though each obligation or condition were set forth fully herein. The Contractor and its subcontractors, if any, also agrees to maintain compliance with the Oregon Identity Theft Protection Act (OITPA) ORS Sections 646A.600 through 646A.628.

The Contractor further declares by the signing of this Contract that all the **Federal labor standards** provisions required by **the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts (40 USC 3141-3148; and 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, 5, and 7) and State provisions required by** ORS 279C.800 through 279C.870 relating to the payment of prevailing wage rates for work performed under the Contract with the City of Albany shall be complied with, and that daily/weekly/holiday/weekend overtime will be paid. If Contractor fails, neglects, or refuses to make prompt payment for labor or services, the City can pay and withhold these amounts from payments due the contractor. (ORS 279C.515) Contractor shall indemnify the City from claims of damages resulting from actual or alleged violations of these obligations.

PK-19-01 Sunrise Park Path SAMPLE CONTRACT

In consideration of the faithful performance of all of the obligations herein set out, and in consideration of the faithful performance of this Contract, the City agrees to pay to the Contractor the amount earned, as determined from the actual quantities of work performed and prices and other basis of payment specified, taking into consideration any amounts that may be deductible, under the terms of the Contract.

The Contractor agrees to complete the work within the time specified herein and to accept as full payment hereunder the amounts computed as determined by the Contract Documents and based on the said proposal.

Said improvements shall be completed by the date specified in said Contract Documents and if not so completed, unless said time for completion is extended, as provided in the Contract Documents, or if extended, if the same is not completed within the time extended, the City will be caused to incur liquidated damages as specified in the Contract Documents. Liquidated damages shall be retained out of any monies due or to become due under this agreement.

Payments shall be made as provided in the Contract Documents. Notwithstanding anything in this agreement to the contrary, the City's obligation to pay money beyond the current fiscal year shall be subject to and dependent upon appropriations being made from time to time by the City Council for such purpose; provided, however, that the City Manager or other officer charged with the responsibility for preparing the City's annual budget shall include in the budget for each fiscal year the amount of the city financial obligation payable in such year and the City Manager or such other officer shall use his/her best efforts to obtain the annual appropriations required to authorize said payments.

The Parties acknowledge that the parties and their counsel have reviewed this Agreement and that the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting Party shall not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement or any exhibits or amendments hereto.

Should suit or action be undertaken to enforce any of the terms of this agreement or to seek damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of its reasonable attorney fees, costs, and expenses, including expert witness fees, incurred therein, and such costs and fees as may be required on appeal, including those incurred on appeal. Jurisdiction for litigation shall be vested exclusively in the courts of Oregon, Oregon law shall apply, and venue shall lie in the Circuit Courts in and for Linn County, Oregon.

The date this Agreement is signed by the last party to sign it (as indicated by the date associated with that party's signature) will be deemed the date of this Agreement. If a party signs but fails to date a signature the date that the other party receives the signing party's signature will be deemed to be the date that the signing party signed this Agreement and the other party may inscribe that date as the date associated with the signing party's signature.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned duly authorized officials have caused this contract to be executed on behalf of their respective parties.

CONTRACTOR:	CITY OF ALBANY, OREGON:
DATE:	DATE:
By:	Ву:
Title:	Peter Troedsson, City Manager
By:	
Title:	APPROVED AS TO FORM:
(Note: Signatures of two officers are required for a corporation.)	
	Ву:
Construction Contractor's Board License Number	M. Sean Kidd, City Attorney
Tax Identification No.:	
Telephone Number: ( )	

#### PERFORMANCE BOND

DOND NUMBER.		
TOTAL BID AMOUNT: \$		
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that v	we,	
Contractor (Principal), and		
surety business in the State of Oregon as SURETY, are	jointly and severally held and bo	ound unto the City of Albany,
Oregon, (Obligee) in the sum of (100% of Contract)		
	Dollars (\$	) for the payment of
which we jointly and severally bind ourselves, our heirs, e	executors, administrators, and assi	igns or successors and assigns
firmly by these presents.	•	

THE CONDITION OF THIS BOND IS SUCH that, whereas the principal has made and entered into a certain contract, a copy of which is attached hereto, with the City of Albany, Oregon, which contract, together with the applicable plans, Standard Specifications, Special Provisions, and schedule of contract prices, is by this reference made a part, whereby the principal agrees to perform in accordance with the certain terms, conditions, requirements, plans, and specifications which are set out in the contract and all authorized modifications of the contract which increase the amount of the work and the amount of the contract. Notice to the surety of any of the immediately foregoing are waived.

NOW, THEREFORE, if Contractor shall faithfully and truly observe and comply with the terms, conditions, and provisions of the Contract, in all respects upon the terms set forth therein, and within the time prescribed therein and shall indemnify and save harmless the City of Albany, Oregon, its officers, employees, and agents against losses and expenses and any damages of every kind and description that shall be suffered or claimed to be suffered in connection with or arising out of the performance of the said Contract and shall honor all claims for defective work within the warranty period(s) established by the *Standard Construction Specifications* and Special Provisions, after the acceptance of said Contract, then this obligation is to be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect for the duration of the warranty period(s). The establishment and warranty periods for plantings shall be two years as outlined in Section 107.15.02 of the *Standard Construction Specifications*. The warranty for all other work shall be for a one-year period as outlined in Section 107.15.00.

#### PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this bond is subject to the following further conditions:

- a) Losses and expenses include but are not limited to attorney's fees to defend all claims, proceedings, lawsuits, and judgments arising out of or resulting from the fault of the principal, the principal's agents, representatives, or subcontractors, in the performance of or failure to perform this contract. However, principal shall not be required to indemnify any indemnitee to the extent the damage, loss, or expense is caused by the indemnitee's negligence and shall in all respects perform said contract according to law.
- b) All material suppliers and all persons who shall supply such laborers, mechanics, or subcontractors with material, supplies, or provisions for carrying on such work, shall have a direct right of action against Contractor and Surety on this bond, second only the right of the City of Albany, Oregon, under this bond, which right of action shall be asserted in proceedings instituted in the name of the City of Albany, Oregon, to the use and benefit of the person, firm, or corporation instituting such action and all other persons, firms, or corporations having claims hereunder, shall have the right to be made a party to such proceeding and to have such claim adjudicated in such action and judgment rendered thereon.
- c) In no event shall SURETY be liable for a greater sum than the penalty of this Bond, or subject to any suit, action, or proceeding thereon that is instituted past the expiration of the warranty period(s) after the complete performance and acceptance of said Contract and final settlement thereof.
- d) The said SURETY, for the value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or the Specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligations of this bond; and it does hereby waive notice of any such

DONID NILIMDED.

Documents.		,
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties here 2019.	to have caused this bond to be executed this	day of
	Principal	
	Ву:	
	Signature	
	Print or type	
	Street/City Address	
	-	
	Surety	
	By: Signature	
	Print or type	
	J1	
	Street/City Address	
	Telephone Number	
Surety Witness:		
Ву:		
Street/City Address		

change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Contract, or to the work, or to the Contract

#### PAYMENT BOND

DOND NUMBER.		
TOTAL BID AMOUNT: \$		
IZNIOW, ALL MENI DV WHEEL DDECENWE J.		
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that we, _		
Contractor (Principal), and	, a corporation, du	ly authorized to do a general
surety business in the State of Oregon as SURETY, are join		
Oregon, (Obligee) in the sum of (100% of Contract)	,	,
	Dollars (\$	) for the payment of
which we jointly and severally bind ourselves, our heirs, execu	itors, administrators, and ass	igns or successors and assigns
firmly by these presents.		

THE CONDITION OF THIS BOND IS SUCH that, whereas the principal has made and entered into a certain contract, a copy of which is attached hereto, with the City of Albany, Oregon, which contract, together with the applicable plans, Standard Specifications, Special Provisions, and schedule of contract prices, is by this reference made a part, whereby the principal agrees to perform in accordance with the certain terms, conditions, requirements, plans, and specifications which are set out in the contract and all authorized modifications of the contract which increase the amount of the work and the amount of the contract. Notice to the surety of any of the immediately foregoing are waived.

NOW, THEREFORE, if Contractor shall make payment promptly, as due to all subcontractors and to all persons supplying to the Contractor or its subcontractors, equipment, supplies, labor, or materials for the prosecution of the work, or any part thereof, provided for in said contract; and shall in performing the contract pay and cause to be paid not less than the State of Oregon Bureau of Labor and Industries (BOLI) prevailing wage rates in effect as of the date of the bid advertisement by City of Albany, Oregon, unless the amount of the contract is \$50,000 or less, in which case the prevailing wage rate requirement shall not apply; and pay per hour, day, and week for and to each and every worker who may be employed in and about the performance of the contract; and pay all contributions or amounts due to the State Accident Insurance Fund and the State Unemployment Trust Fund from such Contractor or subcontractors; and pay all sums of money withheld from the Contractor's employees and payable to the State Department of Revenue; and shall pay all other just debts, dues, and demands incurred in the performance of the said contract; and shall pay the City of Albany, Oregon such damages as may accrue to the City of Albany, Oregon, under the contract, then this obligation is to be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect, provided that surety will remain liable to satisfy the claim of any worker affected by the failure of the principal or any subcontractor under the contract to pay the minimum rate of wage in accordance with the contract in the amount of minimum wages and an additional amount equal thereto as liquidated damages.

- a) All material suppliers and all persons who shall supply such laborers, mechanics, or subcontractors with material, supplies, or provisions for carrying on such work, shall have a direct right of action against Contractor and Surety on this bond, second only the right of the City of Albany, Oregon, under this bond, which right of action shall be asserted in proceedings instituted in the name of the City of Albany, Oregon, to the use and benefit of the person, firm, or corporation instituting such action and all other persons, firms, or corporations having claims hereunder, shall have the right to be made a party to such proceeding and to have such claim adjudicated in such action and judgment rendered thereon.
- b) The said Surety, for the value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or the Specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligations of this bond; and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Contract, or to the work, or to the Contract Documents.

DONID NILIMDED.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parti	ies hereto have caused this bond to be executed this	day of
2019.		
	Principal	
	By: Signature	
	Print or type	
	Street/City Address	
	Surety	
	By: Signature	
	Print or type	
	Street/City Address	
	Telephone Number	
Surety Witness:		
Ву:		
Street/City Address		

#### SPECIAL PROVISIONS

#### SECTION I: GENERAL REQUIREMENTS AND TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

#### I-1. DESCRIPTION OF WORK

Project includes construction of sidewalk (approximately 510 square yards), electrical connections, conduit, wiring and equipment, erosion control, protective fencing and grade restoration adjacent to sidewalk.

Construction shall be in conformance with the current edition of the City of Albany *Standard Construction Specifications*, the Construction Drawings, and these Special Provisions.

#### I-2. OPTIONAL PREBID MEETING

Contractors wishing to more closely inspect the site shall attend the optional pre-bid meeting on Friday, June 28, 2019, at 10:00 a.m. at Sunrise Park, 2275 Thurston Street SE, Albany.

Regardless of attendance, the Contractor acknowledges satisfaction as to the nature and location of the work. Failure to become acquainted with the physical conditions of the project will not relieve the Contractor from the responsibility of properly estimating the difficulty or cost of successfully performing the work. The contractor warrants, as a result of examination and investigation of all data, the work can be performed in a good workmanlike manner to the satisfaction of the City.

#### I-3. STANDARD CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS

Each bidder must have access to a current set of City of Albany *Standard Construction Specifications*, which can be found on the City of Albany's website at <a href="http://www.cityofalbany.net/departments/public-works/engineering/standard-construction-specifications">http://www.cityofalbany.net/departments/public-works/engineering/standard-construction-specifications</a> or a printed set may be purchased for \$100. All public improvements are required to conform to these specifications and bid prices shall reflect these specifications.

#### I-4. AWARD OF CONTRACT

The Contract, if awarded, will be awarded to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder based upon the lowest total bid amount, as determined by the City of Albany, and on the City's sole and absolute judgment to best serve its interest.

The City reserves the right to postpone the acceptance of the proposal and the award of the contract to a responsible bidder for a period not to exceed sixty (60) calendar days, or to reject any and all proposals received and further advertise the project for bids. The City may reject any bids not in compliance with all prescribed public contracting procedures and requirements, including the requirement to demonstrate the bidder's responsibility under ORS 279C.375(3)(b), and may reject for good cause any or all bids upon a finding of the City it is in the public interest to do so.

<u>List of Subcontractors</u>. Contractor is required to submit a list of subcontractors in accordance with ORS 279C.370. The City will submit a copy of this disclosure of first-tier subcontractors to the Bureau of Labor and Industries (BOLI) along with the completed BOLI form WH-81.

Failure to submit the list of subcontractors' forms by the disclosure deadline will result in a non-responsive bid. A non-responsive bid will not be considered for award. If no subcontractors need to be disclosed; this form must still be submitted indicating such.

<u>Electronic Signature</u>. Any signature (including any electronic symbol or process attached to, or associated with, a contract or other record and adopted by a Person with the intent to sign, authenticate or accept such contract or record) hereto or to any other certificate, agreement or document related to this transaction, and any contract formation or record-keeping through electronic means shall have the same legal validity and enforceability as a manually executed signature or use of a paper-based recordkeeping system to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law.

#### I-5. CONTRACT COMPLETION TIME AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

At the Contractor's option, the City will issue the Notice to Proceed any time after both parties have executed the contract. The Contractor shall be required to give the City seven (7) days advance notice of intent to begin construction. Regardless of the actual construction start date, all work specified in the contract documents shall be completed, in every respect, by **October 15, 2019**, the ultimate completion date.

Liquidated damages will be assessed against the Contractor for each day over the maximum number of calendar days allotted plus each day beyond the stated ultimate completion date until the work is satisfactorily completed and accepted by the City. The schedule of liquidated damages is listed in the *Standard Construction Specifications*, Section 108.06.00.

#### I-6. LATE COMPLETION PENALTY

If the project is accepted as complete, including all punch list items, after the contract completion date, the Contractor will be assessed a late completion penalty, in addition to any liquidated damages, of \$300.00 per calendar day beyond the contract completion date until the project is completed in full.

#### I-7. PRECONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE

A preconstruction meeting will be required. The meeting will be scheduled to take place a minimum of one week prior to beginning of construction. The Contractor shall submit the following submittals at the preconstruction conference:

- Project Schedule
- Erosion and Sediment Control Plan
- HUD Form 5282 Certificate from Contractor Appointing Officer or Employee to Supervise Payment of Employee (Appendix D)

#### I-8. PROJECT SCHEDULE

A detailed construction schedule of all work relating to this project shall be submitted to the Engineer at the preconstruction conference. The schedule shall show how the contractor plans to complete the project on or before the ultimate completion date. The Contractor shall take appropriate measures to expedite work items that are behind schedule, including the use of outside forces to complete the work, without additional compensation.

#### I-9. NOTIFICATIONS

<u>Pre-Construction notification to DEQ.</u> The Contractor must provide pre-construction notification one week prior to the start of construction. (Amy Simpson; <u>simpson.amy@deq.state.or.us</u>; 503-229-5051; Department of Environmental Quality; 700 NE Multnomah Street, Suite 600; Portland, OR 97232)

The Contractor shall provide written notice to the front office of the following agencies, three (3) working days in advance of beginning construction. The written notice shall include the construction schedule and shall explain the extent and duration of expected traffic disruptions.

- 1. Republic Services
- 2. Albany Fire Department
- 3. Albany School District
- 4. Albany Police Department

The Contractor shall notify the above-named agencies and the public of any schedule changes that are made by the Contractor, required by the City, or are the result of weather or other unforeseen circumstance. The Contractor shall submit a copy of each notification to the City for review and approval prior to delivering the notices.

The Contractor shall provide written notification to all affected residents and businesses three (3) working days in advance of scheduled work that will result in traffic disruptions and blocked access to driveways or parking areas. Written notifications shall explain the extent and duration of the disruption of traffic and/or blocked access and shall include alternate routes or parking areas as appropriate.

#### I-10. MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEETS (MSDS)

For all projects involving on-site work at the City of Albany's Water Treatment Plant, located at 300 Vine Street SW, or Operations Compound/Water Reclamation Facility, located at 310 Waverly Drive NE, Albany, Oregon, the Contractor shall provide to the City copies of their MSDS for all hazardous materials being used by the Contractor at these sites.

#### I-11. WORK ON PRIVATE PROPERTY

Permits will be required for all plumbing, electrical, and site work on private property. Permits may be obtained from the Building Department at City Hall, 333 Broadalbin Street SW, Albany, Oregon, or are also available via the City's website, which is <a href="https://www.cityofalbany.net">www.cityofalbany.net</a>. Payment for obtaining permits will be considered incidental to the appropriate bid items.

#### I-12. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

The Contractor shall determine the horizontal and vertical alignment of existing public and private utilities well enough in advance to make adjustments to the work. Special care shall be taken to avoid compromising concrete thrust restraint on the existing water system. Locating utilities ahead of construction and providing protective measures where required are incidental to other bid items.

#### I-13. EROSION PREVENTION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL

Contractor shall comply with the City's standards and environmental conditions provided below.

This item includes all work related to procuring, installing, and maintaining erosion prevention and sediment control (EPSC) measures for the duration of the project as shown on the *Construction Drawings*. The Contractor shall submit an EPSC plan at the preconstruction conference for approval by the Engineer. This plan shall include measures to achieve the followings goals:

- Prevent the erosion of exposed soils by wind or rain
- Prevent sediment-laden waters from running onto streets, or into storm drains, ditches, drainage features, wetlands, creeks, streams, lakes, or rivers.
- Maintain clean street and sidewalk surfaces
- Quickly respond to rainfall events with additional measures as needed

The plan shall emphasize measures designed to prevent erosion rather than control sediment. This will require that sediment-laden water from trench dewatering to be processed through mechanical or chemical treatment prior to discharge. Sole reliance on inlet protection to control sediment will be prohibited in most cases. The approved EPSC plan shall be implemented prior to the beginning of ground disturbing activities.

In the event the Contractor fails to provide and maintain EPSC measures that prevent sediment from leaving the construction site, the City may require that work be stopped immediately. The City will not grant contract extensions for work stoppages based on the Contractor's failure to provide and maintain EPSC measures that prevent sediment from leaving the construction site. If sediment-laden water continues to leave the site after one working day following notification by the Engineer, the City may install additional EPSC measures at the Contractor's expense. The City will deduct two times (200%) the City's actual cost, which will include all labor, equipment, and materials involved, from any payments due or coming due to the Contractor.

#### **I-14. 401 WQC LETTER**.

A copy of the 401 WQC letter must be kept on the job site and readily available for reference by the Applicant and its contractors, as well as by DEQ, USACE, National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS), Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife (ODFW) and other appropriate state and local government inspectors.

#### I-15. SITE ACCESS

Employees of the Department of State Lands (DSL) and the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) and all duly authorized representatives of these agencies shall be permitted access to the project area, staging areas, and mitigation sites, at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting work performed under this permit and to monitor compliance with these 401 WQC conditions, including:

- 1. Access to any records, logs, and reports that must be kept under the conditions of this 401 WQC;
- 2. To inspect best management practices (BMPs), monitoring or operational equipment or methods;
- 3. To collect samples or monitor any discharge of pollutants.

#### I-16. EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL REQUIREMENTS

All excavations shall be backfilled daily. Only that portion of the excavation where the next day's work is to resume may be left open. All open trenches in streets shall be covered with secured, steel sheets at the end of work each day. All other excavations shall be backfilled.

Select backfill shall be used in all excavations within the public right-of-way to the limits shown below, regardless of location, and in all driveways subject to vehicle travel.

Paved Area: Use select compacted backfill to finished subgrade elevation.

<u>Unpaved Area</u>: Use select compacted backfill to within 18 inches of finish grade. Complete backfill with topsoil meeting requirement of Section 01010 – Topsoil of the Oregon Department of Transportation's Standard Specifications for Highway Construction, 1996 Edition.

A fill permit will be required to deposit excavated materials, in excess of 50 cubic yards at any one tax lot, from this project regardless of whether the site is publicly or privately owned. For property located within the city limits, fill permits may be obtained from the Public Works Department at City Hall, Third and Broadalbin Streets, Albany, Oregon. For property located outside the city limits, fill permits may be obtained from the Linn County Building Department at the Linn County Court House, Fourth Avenue and Ellsworth Street, Albany, Oregon.

#### I-17. SCHEDULED INTERRUPTION OF WATER SERVICE

Work involving existing water lines shall be scheduled in a manner that will minimize disruption of local water service. Interruption of water service shall not be scheduled to occur on a Friday or City Holiday. As a general rule, scheduled interruptions of local water service shall not occur prior to 9:00 a.m. or after 2:00 p.m. The Contractor shall give written notice to each affected water customer a minimum of 48 hours in advance of a scheduled interruption of water service. Commercial and industrial water customers require a minimum 72-hour advance notice prior to scheduled interruption of water service. In addition, a representative of the Contractor shall personally visit each affected business to deliver the notice to the owner or a responsible employee and answer any questions regarding the shutdown. The Contractor shall coordinate with affected businesses to make meter switchovers and mainline connections at times convenient for their normal operation. In some circumstances it may be necessary to schedule water shutdowns outside of normal working hours. No extra compensation will be due the Contractor for work performed outside of normal working hours.

Each situation involving a scheduled interruption of water service shall be limited to four hours, unless extended by the Engineer. If the Contractor does not complete the work within the allotted time, mitigating circumstances notwithstanding, the City will impose liquidated damages of \$225 per each hour, or fraction thereof, beyond the time limit established by the Engineer.

The Engineer will be responsible for supervising the operation of existing valves as required during the course of the work at all locations and for providing the Contractor with maps detailing individual properties requiring shutoff notices.

#### I-18. BACKFLOW PREVENTION ASSEMBLIES

There may be backflow prevention assemblies on the customer side of the meter where sprinkler systems and landscape irrigation systems are present. These devices are usually located outside of the meter box. The contractor shall be responsible for costs associated with cleaning and testing of these devices and other fixtures that are disabled by debris from the new water line. The Contractor shall promptly resolve issues involving

fixtures of devices plugged by debris as a result of construction operations. In the event that the Contractor does not promptly respond to correct the problem the City will have the work done and Contractor shall be charged.

#### I-19. WATER SUPPLY

The City will provide water required for the completion of the work. The Contractor shall only take water from approved fire hydrants as designated by the Engineer.

#### I-20. PROTECTION OF EXISTING TREES

Trees to remain in place shall be protected at all times. If roots three inches in diameter or greater are encountered during construction, including excavation and trenching activities, the root shall be protected and reported to the Engineer. If the root must be removed, the City Forester shall be consulted prior to pruning. Root pruning shall be accomplished by a sharp cut made with a hand saw or chain saw. Cut or exposed root ends shall be kept moist at all times until backfill is placed to cover the roots. Cut roots three inches or greater must be wrapped in burlap and kept moist for the entire time the roots are exposed. Cut or exposed roots shall be backfilled as soon as possible.

If the Contractor causes the destruction of trees that are to remain, the City will deduct the value of the tree as determined by the City Forester using the methods described in the International Society of Arboriculture's "Valuation of Landscape Trees, Shrubs, and Other Plants: A Guide to the Methods and Procedures for Appraising Amenity Plants."

#### SECTION II: STATE AND FEDERAL CONTRACTING LAW

#### II-1. PREVAILING WAGES

All the provisions required by ORS 279C.800 through ORS 279C.870 relating to the payment of prevailing wage rates for work performed under the Contract with the City of Albany shall be complied with.

Each worker in each trade or occupation employed in the performance of this contract either by the contractor, subcontractor, or other person doing or contracting to do, or contracting for the whole or any part of the work on this contract, must be paid not less than the applicable state prevailing rate of wage, or the applicable federal prevailing rate of wage, whichever is higher.

Oregon law requires that the higher of the state prevailing wage rates (PWR) or federal Davis-Bacon rates be paid to workers on projects subject to both the state PWR law and federal Davis-Bacon Act.

Federal Davis-Bacon rates will apply to this project and <u>are, therefore, attached</u> as Appendix C and may also be obtained at <a href="http://www.wdol.gov/">http://www.wdol.gov/</a>. ORS 279C.830(1)(c); OAR 839-025-0020(3); and the Davis-Bacon Related Acts (40 USC 3141-3148; and 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, 5, and 7) relating to the payment of prevailing wage rates for work performed under the Contract with the City of Albany shall be complied with.

The Contractor agrees to comply with Davis-Bacon Act wage and reporting requirements and provide for remedies and sanctions should violations occur. The Contractor must certify that it will abide by the "Federal Labor Standard Provisions" outlined in the attached form HUD-4010 (Appendix A and B).

The Contractor agrees to comply with the Copeland Anti-Kick Back Act (18 U.S.C. 874 et seq.) and its implementing regulations of the U.S. Department of Labor at 29 CFR Part 5; and all other applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations pertaining to labor standards insofar as those acts apply to the performance of this agreement.

Each year the Oregon Bureau of Labor and Industries (BOLI) publishes two rates publications (and amendments to both) that are available by calling 971-673-0839 or online at the BOLI website at:

https://www.oregon.gov/boli/WHD/PWR/Pages/PWR-Rate-Publications---2019.aspx

BOLI publications that apply to this contract are the January 1, 2019, Prevailing Wage Rates for Public Works Contracts in Oregon; <u>Prevailing Wage Rate Amendment effective April 1, 2019</u>, as well as the <u>April 1, 2019 PWR Apprenticeship Rates</u>.

Daily/weekly/holiday/weekend overtime must be paid. If a contractor fails to pay for any labor or services, the City can pay for this labor or services and withhold these amounts from payments due the contractor. ORS 279C.520; OAR 839-025-0020(2)(b).

<u>Contractors</u> and <u>subcontractors</u> are required to prepare weekly certified payroll reports and statements and submit them to the City by the fifth business day of each month (ORS 279C.845; OAR 839-025-0010). Contractor payment will be withheld until the City is in receipt of these certified weekly payroll reports. Information submitted on certified statements may be used only to ensure compliance with the provisions of ORS 279C.800 through ORS 279C.870.

## **II-2. ENVIRONMENTAL PERMIT CONDITIONS** required by Oregon Department of State Lands, Oregon Department of Environmental Quality and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers:

- A. <u>Site Access</u>. Employees of the Department of State Lands (DSL) and the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) and all duly authorized representatives of these agencies shall be permitted access to the project area, staging areas, and mitigation sites, at all reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting work performed under this permit and to monitor compliance with these 401 WQC conditions, including:
  - 1. Access to any records, logs, and reports that must be kept under the conditions of this 401 WQC;
  - 2. To inspect best management practices (BMPs), monitoring or operational equipment or methods;
  - 3. To collect samples or monitor any discharge of pollutants.

#### II-3. PERFORMANCE, PAYMENT, AND PUBLIC WORKS BONDS

In addition to the required payment bond and performance bond, unless exempt under ORS 279C.836 (7), (8), or (9), the contractor is required to file a \$30,000 Public Works Bond with the Construction Contractor's Board to be used exclusively for unpaid wages determined to be due by BOLI. The general contractor is required to verify that subcontractors, unless exempt, have filed a public works bond before permitting a subcontractor to start work on a project.

The Statutory Public Works Bond form is available from BOLI upon request or may be downloaded from <a href="http://www.oregon.gov/BOLI/WHD/pages/index.aspx">http://www.oregon.gov/BOLI/WHD/pages/index.aspx</a>.

#### II-4. RECIPROCAL PREFERENCE LAW

Oregon's reciprocal preference law, ORS 279A.120 and ORS 279A.125, requires public contracting agencies, in determining the lowest responsible bidder, to add a percent increase to each out-of-state bidder's bid price that is equal to the percent of preference given to local bidders in the bidder's home state. That is, if the low bidder is from a state that grants a 10 percent preference to its own in-state bidders, the Oregon agency must add 10 percent to that bidder's price when evaluating the bid.

For details, check Oregon's Reciprocal Preference Law website at:

https://www.oregon.gov/das/Procurement/Pages/Recippref.aspx

Bidders in need of any assistance in the application of this law should call the State Procurement Office at 503-378-4642, or contact them at State of Oregon - Department of Administrative Services, State Procurement Office, 1225 Ferry Street SE, U-140, Salem, OR 97301-4285.

#### II-5. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/NONDISCRIMINATION

By submitting a bid/proposal, the Bidder/Proposer agrees to comply with the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA); Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; Executive Order 11246, (as amended); Fair Employment Practices; Equal Employment Opportunity Act; Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; Vietnam Era Veterans' Readjustment Assistance Act of 1974; Americans with Disabilities Act; Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (ADEA); and Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS). By submitting a bid/proposal, the Bidder/Proposer specifically certifies, under penalty of perjury, that the Bidder/Proposer has not discriminated against minority, women, or emerging small business enterprises in obtaining any required subcontracts.

If the contract is awarded on the basis of the contractor's certification as a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE), Minority/Women Business Enterprise (MWBE) and Emerging Small Business (ESB) certifications (collectively known as MWESBs), the contractor must remain certified during the entire term of the contract. Contractors must include a similar provision in any subcontracts for the project.

#### II-6. LICENSE REQUIRED FOR ASBESTOS ABATEMENT PROJECT

This contract does <u>not</u> require the contractor or subcontractor to be licensed under ORS 468A.720, regarding asbestos abatement.

#### II-7. CONSTRUCTION AND DEMOLITION DEBRIS / YARD WASTE MATERIALS - ORS 279C.510

The contractor is responsible for:

- 1. Salvaging or recycling construction and demolition debris, if feasible and cost-effective.
- 2. Composting or mulching yard waste material at an approved site, if feasible and cost-effective.

#### II-8. PROVISIONS CONCERNING ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOURCES LAWS

The Contractor agrees to comply with the following environmental laws:

 ORS 279C.525 regarding enacted ordinances, rules, or regulations as set forth by the Albany Municipal Code, Oregon Department of Environmental Quality, Department of State Lands, Environmental Protection Agency, and/or the US Army Corps of Engineers, or any other federal, state, and local agency, to prevent environmental pollution and preservation of natural resources.

- The Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C., 1251, et seq., as amended, 1318 relating to inspection, monitoring, entry, reports, and information, as well as other requirements specified in Section 114 and Section 308.
- For all contracts and subcontracts exceeding \$100,000, the Contractor agrees to comply with the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 USC 1857 *et seq.*, the Federal Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251 *et seq.*), and the regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency at 40 CFR Part 15, as amended, and must comply with the training, employment and business opportunities as specified Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u).
- All applicable Federal laws and regulations described in 24 CFR 570 Part K, except that the Contractor
  does not assume the City's environmental review responsibilities described in 24 CFR Part
  560.605; and for initiating the review process under the provisions of 24 CFR Part 52.

The City of Albany received the following permits and approvals authorizing modifications to the wetland located on the Sunrise Park project site. Contractor agrees to comply with specific conditions associated with these permits included in the referenced appendices and as specified in **Section IV Technical Specifications - Bid Items** related to erosion prevention, site access, and hazardous waste removal.

- Oregon Department of State Lands Removal and Fill Permit No. 59026-RF (Appendix F)
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, No. NWP-2016-180, Section 404 Permit (Appendix G)
- Oregon Department of Environmental Quality 401 Water Quality Permit, No. NWP-2016-180 (Appendix H)

#### II-9. PAYMENT, CONTRIBUTIONS, LIENS, WITHHOLDING - ORS 279C.505

The contractor shall:

- 1. Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to the contractor labor or material for the performance of the work provided for in this contract.
- 2. Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from the contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of the contract.
- Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the City on account of any labor or material furnished.
- 4. Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees under ORS 316.167

## II-10. PAYMENT OF CLAIMS BY PUBLIC OFFICERS, PAYMENT TO PERSONS FURNISHING LABOR OR MATERIALS AND COMPLAINTS - ORS 279C.515; OAR 839-025-0020(2)(a)

- 1. If the Contractor fails, neglects, or refuses to pay promptly a person's claim for labor or services that the person provides to the Contractor or a subcontractor in connection with this contract as the claim becomes due, the City may pay the amount of the claim to the person that provides the labor or services and charge the amount of the payment against funds due or to become due the Contractor by reason of this contract.
- 2. If the Contractor or a first-tier subcontractor fails, neglects, or refuses to pay a person that provides labor or materials in connection with this contract within 30 days after receiving payment from the City or Contractor, the Contractor or first-tier subcontractor owes the person the amount due plus interest charges that begin at the end of the 10-day period within which payment is due under ORS 279C.580 (4) and that end upon final payment, unless payment is subject to a good faith dispute as defined in ORS 279C.580. The rate of interest on the amount due is nine percent per annum. The amount of interest may not be waived.
- 3. If the Contractor or a subcontractor fails, neglects, or refuses to pay a person that provides labor or materials in connection with the public improvement contract, the person may file a complaint with the Construction Contractors Board, unless payment is subject to a good faith dispute as defined in ORS 279C.580.

#### II-11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATIONS WITH SUBCONTRACTORS - ORS 279C.580(3)(4)

Contractor is required to include in each subcontract for property or services the contractor enters into with a first-tier subcontractor, including a material supplier, for the purpose of performing a construction contract:

- 1. A payment clause that obligates the contractor to pay the first-tier subcontractor for satisfactory performance under the subcontract within 10 days out of amounts the City pays to the contractor under this contract.
- 2. A clause that requires the contractor to provide a first-tier subcontractor with a standard form that the first-tier subcontractor may use as an application for payment or as another method by which the subcontractor may claim a payment due from the contractor.
- 3. A clause that requires the contractor, except as otherwise provided in this paragraph, to use the same form and regular administrative procedures for processing payments during the entire term of the subcontract. A contractor may change the form or the regular administrative procedures the contractor uses for processing payments if the contractor:
  - a. Notifies the subcontractor in writing at least 45 days before the date on which the contractor makes the change; and
  - b. Includes with the written notice a copy of the new or changed form or a description of the new or changed procedure.
- 4. An interest penalty clause obligating the Contractor, if the contractor does not pay the first-tier subcontractor within 30 days after receiving payment from the City, to pay the first-tier subcontractor an interest penalty on amounts due in each payment the Contractor does not make in accordance with the payment clause included in the subcontract under paragraph (1.) above. A contractor or first-tier subcontractor is not obligated to pay an interest penalty if the only reason that the contractor or first-tier subcontractor did not make payment when payment was due is that the contractor or first-tier subcontractor did not receive payment from the City or Contractor when payment was due. The interest penalty applies to the period that begins on the day after the required payment date and that ends on the date on which the amount due is paid and is computed at the rate specified in ORS 279C.515(2).
- 5. A clause shall be included in each of the Contractor's subcontracts requiring the first-tier subcontractor to include a payment clause and an interest penalty clause that conforms to the standards of this sub-section, paragraphs 1-4 above, in each of the first-tier subcontractor's subcontracts and to require each of the first-tier subcontractor's subcontractors to include such clauses in the first-tier subcontractors' subcontracts with each lower-tier subcontractor or supplier.
- 6. A mandate that all subcontractors, if they were awarded a subcontract on the basis of certification as a disadvantaged, minority-owned, women-owned, or emerging small business enterprise, to maintain certification through the term of the contract.

#### II-12. CONDITION CONCERNING HOURS OF LABOR - ORS 279C.520

Any worker employed by the Contractor may not be employed for more than 10 hours in any one day, or 40 hours in any one week, except in cases of necessity, emergency or when the public policy absolutely requires it, the employee shall be paid at least time and a half pay as follows:

- 1. For all overtime in excess of eight hours in any one day or 40 hours in any one week when the work week is five consecutive days, Monday through Friday; or for all overtime in excess of 10 hours in any one day or 40 hours in any one week when the work week is four consecutive days, Monday through Friday; and
- 2. For all work performed on Saturday and on any legal holiday specified in ORS 279C.540.

Contractor must give notice in writing to employees, who work on a public contract, either at the time of hire or before commencement of work on the contract, or by posting a notice in a location frequented by employees, of the number of hours per day and days per week that the employees may be required to work.

Contractor shall comply with the prohibition set forth is ORS 652.220, that compliance is a material element of the contract and that a failure to comply is a breach that entitles the contracting agency to terminate the contract for cause.

Contractor may not prohibit any of its employees from discussing the employee's rate of wage, salary, benefits, or other compensation with another employee or another person and may not retaliate against an employee who discusses the employee's rate of wage, salary, benefits, or other compensation with another employee or person.

#### II-13. TIME LIMITATION ON CLAIM FOR OVERTIME - ORS 279C.545

Any worker employed by the Contractor shall be foreclosed from the right to collect for any overtime provided in ORS 279C.540 unless a claim for payment is filed with the Contractor within 90 days from the completion of the contract, providing the contractor has:

- Caused a circular clearly printed in boldfaced 12-point type and containing a copy of ORS 279C.545 to be
  posted in a prominent place alongside the door of the timekeeper's office or in a similar place that is readily
  available and freely visible to workers employed on the work; and
- 2. Maintained the circular continuously posted from the inception to the completion of the contract on which workers are or have been employed.

# II-14. CONDITION CONCERNING PAYMENT OF MEDICAL CARE AND PROVIDING WORKERS' COMPENSATION - ORS 279C.530

- 1. Contractor shall promptly, as due, make payment to any person, co-partnership, association or corporation furnishing medical, surgical, and hospital care services or other needed care and attention, incident to sickness or injury, to the employees of the contractor, of all sums that the contractor agrees to pay for the services and all moneys and sums that the contractor collected or deducted from the wages of employees under any law, contract or agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for the services.
- 2. All subject employers working under this Contract shall comply with ORS 656.017 and provide the required Workers' Compensation coverage, unless such employers are exempt under ORS 656.126. Contractor shall ensure that each of its subcontractors complies with these requirements.

#### SECTION III: FEDERAL COMPLIANCE PROVISIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS USING HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT (HUD) FUNDING

#### III-1. NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION (Executive Order 11246, 41 CFR 60)

(The following affirmative action requirements apply to all contracts and subcontracts over \$10,000.)

- A. The Bidder's attention is called to the "Equal Opportunity Clause" and the "Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications" set forth herein.
- B. The goals and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage terms for the Contractor's aggregate workforce in each trade on all construction work in the covered area, are as follows:

Goals for female participation	Goal (%)
From April 1, 1980, until further notice:	6.9%

Goals for Minority Utilization by Oregon County **Goal (%)** 

Benton, Clatsop, Columbia, Crook, Deschutes, Hood River, Jefferson, Lincoln, Linn, Sherman,

Tillamook, Wasco, and Yamhill Counties 3.8%

These goals are applicable to all the Contractor's construction work (whether or not it is federal or federally assisted) performed in the covered area. If the Contractor performs construction work in a geographic area located outside of the covered area, it shall apply the goals established for such geographic area where the work is actually performed.

With regard to this second area, the Contractor also is subject to the goals for both its federally involved and non-federally involved construction. The Contractor's compliance with the Executive Order (EO) and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4 shall be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR 60-4.3 (a) and its efforts to meet the goals established for the geographical area where the contract resulting from this solicitation is to be performed. The hours of minority and female employment and training must be substantially uniform throughout the length of the contract, and in each trade, and the Contractor shall make a good faith effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects. The transfer of minority or female employees or trainees from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for the sole purpose of meeting the Contractor's goals shall be a violation of the contract, the Executive Order, and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4. Compliance with the goals will be measured against the total work hours performed.

- C. The Contractor shall provide written notification to the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs within 10 working days of award of any construction subcontract in excess of \$10,000 at any tier for construction work under the contract resulting from this solicitation. The notification shall list the name, address, and telephone number of the subcontractor; employer identification number; estimated dollar amount of the subcontract; estimated starting and completion dates of the sub-contract; and the geographical area in which the contract is to be performed.
- D. As used in this Notice, and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the "covered area" is the City of Albany.

#### **EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY** III-2. EQUAL (EEO) **CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS (EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246)**

(All contracts and subcontracts over \$10,000 must include the following specifications.)

- A. As used in these specifications:
  - 1. "Covered area" means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which this contract resulted:
  - "Director" means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, United States Department of Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates authority;

- 3. "Employer Identification Number" (EIN) means the Federal Social Security number used on the Employer's Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S. Treasury Department Form 941.
- 4. "Minority" includes:
  - a) Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not of Hispanic origin);
  - b) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South America or other Spanish Culture or origin, regardless of race);
  - c) Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in any of the original people of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and
  - d) American Indian or Alaskan Native (all persons having origins in any of the original peoples of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and participation or community identification).
- B. When the Contractor, or any subcontractor, at any time, subcontracts a portion of the work involving any construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract, in excess of \$10,000, the provisions of these specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and female participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which this contract resulted.
- C. If the Contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved by the U.S. Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an association, its affirmative action obligations on all work in the Plan area (including goals and timetables) shall be in accordance with that Plan for those trades which have unions participating in the Plan. Contractors must be able to demonstrate their participation in compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan. Each Contractor or subcontractor participating in an approved Plan is individually required to comply with its obligations under the Equal Employment Opportunity clause, and to make a good faith effort to achieve each goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees. The overall good faith performance by other Contractors or subcontractors toward a goal in an approved Plan does not excuse any covered Contractor's or subcontractor's failure to take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and timetables.
- D. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in paragraphs G(1) through G(16) of these specifications. The goals set forth in the solicitation from which this contract resulted are expressed as percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and female utilization the Contractor should reasonably be able to achieve in each construction trade in which it has employees in the covered area. Covered construction Contractors performing contracts in geographical areas where they do not have a federal or federally assisted construction contract shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographic area where the contract is being performed. Goals are published periodically in the Federal Register in notice form and such notices may be obtained from any Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs office or from Federal procurement contracting officers. The Contractor is expected to make substantially uniform progress in meeting its goals in each craft during the period specified.
- E. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the failure by a union with whom the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement, to refer either minorities or women shall excuse the Contractor's obligations under these specifications, EO 11246, or the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.
- F. In order for the non-working training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in meeting the goals, such apprentices and trainees must be employed by the Contractor during the training period, and the Contractor must have made a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to the availability of employment opportunities. Trainees must be trained pursuant to training programs approved by the U.S. Department of Labor.
- G. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative action to ensure equal employment opportunity. The evaluation of the Contractor's compliance with these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions. The Contractor shall document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as extensive as the following:
  - 1. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the Contractor's employees are assigned to work. The Contractor, where possible, will assign two or more women to each construction project. The Contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry

- out the Contractor's obligation to maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.
- 2. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources, provide written notification to minority and female recruitment sources and to community organizations when the Contractor or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the organization's responses.
- 3. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of each minority and female off-the-street applicant and minority or female referral from a union, a recruitment source, or community organization and of what action was taken with respect to each such individual. If such individual was sent to the union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred, not employed by the Contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason therefore, along with whatever additional actions the Contractor may have taken.
- 4. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement have not referred to the Contractor a minority person or woman sent by the Contractor, or when the Contractor has other information that the union referral process has impeded the Contractor's efforts to meet its obligations.
- 5. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs for the area which expressly includes minorities and women, including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the Contractor's employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor. The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources compiled under G(2) above.
- 6. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on a bulletin board accessible to all employees at each location where construction work is performed.
- 7. Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and affirmative action obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination, or other employment decisions including specific review of these items with on-site supervisory personnel such as Superintendents, General Foreman, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition of the subject matter.
- 8. Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and providing written notification to and discussing the Contractor's EEO policy with other Contractors and Subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates doing business.
- 9. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and community organizations, to schools with minority and female students and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations serving the Contractor's recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than one month prior to the date for acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment source, the Contractor shall send written notification to organizations such as the above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection process.
- 10. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons and women and, where reasonable, provide after school, summer, and vacation employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a Contractor's work force.
- 11. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do so under 41 CFR Part 60-3.

- 12. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation of all minority and female personnel for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities.
- 13. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other personnel practices, do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the Contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried out.
- 14. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are non-segregated except that separate or single-user toilet and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes.
- 15. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontracts from minority and female construction Contractors and suppliers, including circulation of solicitation to minority and female Contractor associations and other business associations.
- 16. Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisors' adherence to and performance under the Contractor's EEO policies and affirmative action obligations.
- H. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which assist in fulfilling one or more of their affirmative action obligations (G(1) through G(16)). The efforts of a Contractor association, joint Contractor-union, Contractor-community, or other similar group of which the Contractor is a member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more of its obligations under G(1) through G(16) of these specifications provided that the Contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact on the employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the program are reflected in the Contractor's minority and female workforce participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals and timetables, and can provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on behalf of the Contractor. The obligation shall not be a defense for the Contractor's non-compliance.
- I. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established. The Contractor, however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority. Consequently, the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order (EO) if a particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example, even though the Contractor has achieved its goals for women generally, the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is underutilized).
- J. The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to discriminate against any persons because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- K. The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract with any person or firm debarred from government contracts pursuant to EO 11246.
- L. The Contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these specifications and of the Equal Opportunity Clause including suspension, termination, and cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to EO 11246, as amended.
- M. The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications, shall implement specific affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those standards prescribed in paragraph G of these specifications, so as to achieve maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment opportunity. If the Contractor fails to comply with the requirements of the Executive Order, the implementing regulations, or these specifications, the Director shall proceed in accordance with 41 CFR 60-4.8.
- N. The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is being carried out, to submit reports relating to the provisions hereof as may be required by the government and to keep records. Records shall at least include for each employee, the name, address, telephone numbers, construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number where assigned, social security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprenticeship trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of pay, and location at which the work was performed. Records shall be maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable

- form; however, to the degree that existing records satisfy this requirement, Contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records.
- O. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws which establish different standards of compliance or upon the application or requirements for the hiring of local or other area residents (e.g., those under the Public Works Employment Act of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant Program).

#### III-3. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE (41 CFR 60-4.3)

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

- A. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
- B. The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- C. The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which s/he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- D. The Contractor will comply with all provisions of EO 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- E. The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by EO 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- F. In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in EO 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in EO 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- G. The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (A) through (G) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of EO 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, That in the event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

### III-4. SECTION 3 OF THE HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 1968 - COMPLIANCE IN THE PROVISION OF TRAINING, EMPLOYMENT AND BUSINESS OPPORTUNITIES

(The following provisions are applicable to all contracts and subcontracts over \$10,000.)

- A. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u (Section 3). The purpose of Section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by Section 3 shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing. This includes, to the greatest extent feasible, that opportunities for training and employment be given to lower income residents of the project area and that contracts for work in connection with the project be awarded to business concerns which are located in, or owned in substantial part by, persons residing in the area of the project.
- B. The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR Part 135, which implement Section 3. The parties to this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other type of impediment which would prevent compliance with the Part 135 regulations.
- C. The Contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a notice advising the labor organization or workers' representative of the Contractor's commitments under this Section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for training and employment.
- D. The Contractor agrees to include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to compliance with regulations in 24 CFR Part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, as provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this Section 3 clause, upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR Part 135. The Contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the Contractor has notice or knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR Part 135.
- E. The Contractor certifies that any vacant employment positions, including training positions, that are filled 1) after the Contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, and 2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR Part 135 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the Contractor's obligations under 24 CFR Part 135.
- F. Non-compliance with HUD's regulations in 24 CFR Part 135 may result in termination of this contract for default.

#### III-5. CERTIFICATION OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES

(This provision is applicable to all federally-aided construction contracts and to all related construction subcontracts over \$10,000.)

The Contractor or subcontractor certifies that facilities provided for employees are provided in such a manner that segregation on the basis of race, color, religion, sex or national origin cannot result. The Contractor or subcontractor may neither require such segregated use by written or oral policies nor tolerate such use by employee custom. The Contractor's or subcontractor's obligation extends further to ensure that its employees are not assigned to perform their services at any location, under the Contractor's control, where the facilities are segregated. Breach of this certification is a violation of the equal opportunity clause of this contract.

As used in this certification, the term "segregated facilities" means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms, restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms, and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation and housing facilities provided for employees which are segregated by explicit directive or are, in fact, segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, or national origin because of habit, local custom, or any other reason. The

Contractor or subcontractor shall provide separate or single-user restrooms ad necessary dressing or sleeping areas to assure privacy between sexes.

The Contractor or subcontractor will retain such certifications in his/her files.

#### III-6. CIVIL RIGHTS AND NON-DISCRIMINATION

The Contractor shall comply with:

- A. <u>Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.)</u>. No person shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.
- B. Nondiscrimination. Section 109 of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act (HCDA) of 1974 as amended. No person in the United States shall on the grounds of race, color, national origin, or sex be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity funded in whole or in part with funds made available under this title. Section 109 further provides that discrimination on the basis of age under the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 or with respect to an otherwise qualified handicapped individual as provided in Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, is prohibited.
- C. Nondiscrimination in Employment and Contracting. The Contractor shall comply with the non-discrimination in employment and contracting opportunities laws, regulations, and executive orders referenced in 24 CFR 570.607, as revised by Executive Order 13279. The applicable non-discrimination provisions in Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act are still applicable. There will be no discrimination against any employee, applicant for employment, or persons served on account of creed, religion, race, color, sex, national origin, age, marital status, sexual orientation, gender identity, political ideology, ancestry, national origin, familial status, source of income, disability or the presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap, unless based upon a bona fide occupational qualification in the performance of this AGREEMENT. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.
- D. <u>Equal Opportunity/Affirmative Action Employer</u>. The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that it is an Equal Opportunity or Affirmative Action employer.

#### III-7. SECTION 503 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973 (29 U.S.C. 793)

(The following provisions are applicable to all contracts and subcontracts over \$10,000.)

- A. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of physical or mental handicap in regard to any position for which the employee or applicant for employment is otherwise qualified. The Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to employ, advance in employment and otherwise treat qualified handicapped individuals without discrimination based upon their physical or mental handicap in all employment practices such as the following: employment upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.
- **B.** The Contractor agrees to comply with the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to the Act.
- C. In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the requirements of this clause, actions for noncompliance may be taken in accordance with the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to the Act.

- D. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices in a form to be prescribed by the Director, provided by or through the contracting officer. Such notices shall state the Contractor's obligation under the law to take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified handicapped employees and applicants for employment, and the rights of applicants and employees.
- E. The Contractor will notify each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract understanding, that the Contractor is bound by the terms of Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and is committed to take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment physically and mentally handicapped individuals.
- F. The Contractor will include the provisions of this clause in every subcontract or purchase order of \$10,000 or more unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary issued pursuant to Section 503 of the Act, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the Director of the Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs may direct to enforce such provisions, including action for noncompliance.

#### III-8. WOMEN- AND MINORITY-OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES (W/MBE)

The Contractor will use its best efforts to afford small businesses, minority business enterprises, and women's business enterprises as defined in Title 49 Code of Federal Regulations Part 23, and as it may be amended, the maximum practicable opportunity to participate in the performance of contracts and subcontracts awarded through the City of Albany's Community Development Block Grant Program. As used in this contract, the terms "small business" means a business that meets the criteria set forth in section 3(a) of the Small Business Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. 632), and "minority and women's business enterprise" means a business at least fifty-one (51) percent owned and controlled by minority group members or women. For the purpose of this definition, "minority group members" are U.S. citizens who are Asian, Black, Hispanic, and Native American. The Contractor may rely on written representations by businesses regarding their status as minority and female business enterprises in lieu of an independent investigation.

#### III-9. FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS

The Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of the Copeland Anti-Kick Back Act (18 U.S.C. 874 et seq.) and its implementing regulations of the U.S. Department of Labor at 29 CFR Part 5; and all other applicable Federal, state and local laws and regulations pertaining to labor standards insofar as those acts apply to the performance of the contract.

For all federally-aided construction projects exceeding \$2,000, the Contractor and any subcontractor agree to comply with the requirements of the Secretary of Labor in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act as amended, wage and reporting requirements provided in U.S. Department of Labor regulations in 29 CFR 5.5 "contract provisions and related matters", and provide for remedies and sanctions should violations occur. The Contractor and/or subcontractor shall abide by the "Federal Labor Standard Provisions" outlined in form HUD-4010 provided as Appendices A and B.

#### III-10. PROTECTION OF LIVES AND HEALTH

The Contractor shall exercise proper precaution at all times for the protection of persons and property and shall be responsible for all damages to persons or property, either on or off the worksite, which occur as a result of his prosecution of the work. The safety provisions of applicable laws and building and construction codes, in addition to specific safety and health regulations described by Chapter XIII, Bureau of Labor Standards, Department of Labor, Part 1518, Safety and Health Regulations for Construction, as outlined in the Federal Register, Volume 36, No. 75, Saturday, April 17, 1971, Title 29 - LABOR, shall be observed and the Contractor shall take or cause to be taken, such additional safety and health measures as the Owner may determine to be reasonably necessary.

#### III-11. LOBBYING

The Contractor certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

- A. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Contractor, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- B. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the Contractor shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

#### III-12. HATCH ACT

The Contractor agrees that no funds provided, nor personnel employed under this agreement, shall be in any way or to any extent engaged in the conduct of political activities in violation of Chapter 15 of Title V of the U.S.C.

#### III-13. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officer or employee of the local jurisdiction or its designees or agents, no member of the governing body, and no other public official of the locality who his/her tenure or for one year thereafter, shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be performed. Further, the Contractor shall cause to be incorporated in all subcontracts the language set forth in this paragraph prohibiting conflict of interest.

#### III-14. RELIGIOUS ACTIVITIES

The Contractor agrees that funds provided under this agreement will not be utilized for inherently religious activities prohibited by 24 CFR 570.200(j), such as worship, religious instruction, or proselytization.

#### III-15. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS

The Contractor agrees to comply with all other applicable Federal, state and local laws, regulations, and policies governing the funds provided under this contract. The Contractor will assure that all necessary city/county building permits are obtained.

The Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of Title 24 of the Code of Federal Regulations, Part 570 (Housing and Urban Development regulations concerning Community Development Block Grants). The Contractor further agrees to utilize funds available under this agreement to supplement rather than supplant funds otherwise available.

#### III-16. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND RECORDKEEPING

- A. Accounting Standards. The Contractor agrees to comply with 24 CFR 84.21-28 and agrees to adhere to the accounting principles and procedures required therein, utilize adequate internal controls, and maintain necessary source documentation for all costs incurred.
- B. <u>Cost Principles</u>. The Contractor shall administer its program in conformance with OMB Circulars A-122 "Cost Principles for Non-Profit Organizations"; or A-87 "Cost Principles for State, Local, and

- Indian Tribal Governments"; or A-21 "Cost Principles for Educational Institutions" as applicable. These principles shall be applied for all costs incurred whether charged on a direct or indirect basis.
- C. <u>Records to be Maintained</u>. The Contractor shall maintain all records required by the Federal regulations specified in 24 CFR 570 that are pertinent to the activities to be funded under this Agreement. Such records shall include but not be limited to:
  - 1. Records documenting compliance with the fair housing and equal opportunity components of the CDBG program;
  - 2. Financial records as required by 24 CFR 570.502, and 24 CFR 84.21-28; and
  - 3. Other records necessary to document compliance with Subpart K of 24 CFR Part 570.
- D. Record Retention. The Contractor shall retain all financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records pertinent to the Agreement for a period of ten (10) years. The retention period begins on the date the City of Albany submits the City's annual performance and evaluation report (CAPER) to HUD in which the activities assisted under the Agreement are reported on for the final time. Notwithstanding the above, if there is litigation, claims, audits, negotiations or other actions that involve any of the records cited and that have started before the expiration of the four-year period, then such records must be retained until completion of the actions and resolution of all issues, or the expiration of the four-year period, whichever occurs later.
- E. Access to Records. Contractor further agrees that City of Albany, or any of its duly authorized representatives, shall, during said period, have access to and the right to audit, examine, and reproduce such records and further agrees to include the above provision in all subcontracts. The Contractor shall furnish and cause each of its own subcontractors to furnish all information and reports required hereunder and will permit access to its books, records and accounts by the City of Albany, HUD or its agent, or other authorized Federal officials for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with the rules, regulations and provisions stated herein.

# SECTION IV: SITE WORK TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

# for Sunrise Park Phase II Prepared by DLA INC. for the City of Albany

**Dougherty Landscape Architects;** 474 Willamette St., Suite 305; Eugene, OR 97401 Contact: David Dougherty; Phone: 541-683-5803; Email: DavidD@DLAdesign.com

## CONSULTANT:

# Electrical Engineers

**JLG ENGINEERING, INC.;** 31910 Owl Road; Eugene, OR 97401 Contact: Jeff Graper; Phone: 541-912-0065; Email: jeffgraper@jlgengineering.com

# **DIVISION 2 – SITEWORK**

### SECTION 02100 - SITE PREPARATION AND CLEARING

#### PART 1 GENERAL

## 1.01 CONTRACT CONDITIONS

A. Work of this section is bound by the Contract conditions in addition to these specifications and accompanying drawings.

# 1.02 WORK INCLUDED

- A. Site Clearing
  - 1. Strip existing lawn and vegetation in areas to receive paving and improvements.
  - 2. Eradicate unwanted vegetation. Protect plants to remain.
- B. Installation of temporary protection fencing. Remove debris and other items required for work.

## 1.03 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE

- A. Earthwork and Grading, Section 02200
- B. City of Albany Standard Construction Specifications, Section 201, 203, and 209; and
- C. Construction Drawings.

## 1.04 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

- A. Conform to applicable code for environmental requirements, and disposal of debris.
- B. Coordinate clearing Work with utility companies.

# PART 2 PRODUCTS

## 2.01 HERBICIDE

A. To be approved by owner. Comply with applicable laws and ordinances for use of herbicide.

## 2.02 PROTECTION FENCING

B. As shown on construction drawings.

## PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 PREPARATION

A. Layout to be staked by contractor and approved by Landscape Architect prior to commencement of work. See required inspection as defined in Section 02200: Earthwork and Grading.

#### 3.02 STAGING AREA

A. Staging area is not shown on plans. Specific Staging area to be determined by contractor and Landscape Architect at start of on-site work. Contractor responsible for restoration of staging area to original or proposed conditions.

# 3.03 HERBICIDE APPLICATION

- A. Apply herbicide in accordance to manufacturer specifications. Apply uniformly and completely to ensure complete sterilization of all grasses and unwanted vegetation.
- B. Contractor shall exercise extreme caution to protect existing vegetation to remain from effects of herbicide application.
- C. Prevent runoff, soil contamination and airborne drift of herbicides.

# 3.04 STRIPPING

A. Strip designated areas of organic materials at areas to be paved and improved. Existing vegetation within areas to be landscaped may be tilled into the grade.

#### 3.05 REMOVAL AND PLACEMENT

- A. Remove debris, rock, and extracted plant life from site.
- B. Neatly saw cut edges at right angle to surface adjacent to paying and walks indicated to remain.
- C. Strippings shall not be used as a replacement for excavated material.

## END OF SECTION 02100

# SECTION 02200 - EARTHWORK AND GRADING

## PART 1 GENERAL

# 1.01 CONTRACT CONDITIONS

A. Work of this section is bound by the Contract conditions in addition to these specifications and accompanying drawings.

# 1.02 WORK INCLUDED

- A. Excavate soil and place materials.
- B. Fill, rough grade site and establish subgrades.
- C. Install and compact base course materials at paved areas.

# 1.03 RELATED WORK SPECIFIED ELSEWHERE

A. Site Preparation and Clearing, Section 02100.

## 1.04 PROTECTION

- A. Refer to all requirements in drawings, specifications and details.
- B. Protect trees, shrubs, sidewalks, fencing, utilities, benchmarks, and other features to remain. See plans for protection fencing.
- C. Repair damage to existing features to remain.

#### 1.05 COORDINATION

- A. Coordinate with other trades affecting and affected by work of the Section.
- B. Coordinate all work in this section with existing irrigation and utility work which has been previously installed by others. Make adjustments to existing infrastructure as needed for proper installation of finished work.
- C. Notify City in advance of any required testing procedures. Testing is to be facilitated by City.

#### 1.06 DEFINITIONS

- A. AASHTO: American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials.
- B. ASTM: American Society for Testing and Materials.
- C. Weeds: Perennial and herbaceous material, foreign broadleaf and grassy materials, including seeds and roots thereof, including, but not limited to Dandelion, Jimsonweed, Quackgrass, Horsetail, Mustard, Canadian Thistle, Morning Glory, Chickweed, Crabgrass, Nutgrass, Poison Oak, Blackberry, Tansy Ragwort, and any other objectionable growth.

#### 1.07 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. ASTM C136: Method for Sieve Analysis of Fine and Course Aggregates.
- B. ASTM D698: Method for Moisture-Density Relations of Soils and Soil-Aggregate Mixture using 5.5lb. Rammer and 12" drop.
- C. ASTM D2895, D2241, D2466: Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC) pipe.
- D. AASHTO M145: Soil Classifications.
- E. AASHTO T180: Laboratory compaction tests.

## 1.08 TESTING

- A. Proof-roll test of subgrade See Section 3.04
- B. Compaction Test As directed by Owner

# 1.09 REQUIRED INSPECTIONS

- A. Request visitation by Landscape Architect minimum of 48 hours in advance. The following is required:
  - 1. Prior to excavation for concrete pathways and plaza, contractor shall stake concrete walk location and indicate with spray paint or by staking one edge of walk for review and acceptance of layout. Make adjustments to layout if directed by Landscape Architect or Owner.
  - Excavation, Rough Grading and Subgrade Establishment. Immediately after the establishment of all subgrades, but prior to the placement of base courses or the installation of any formwork, Landscape Architect, upon notification, will review work for location, alignment, grades, slopes, drainage and compaction testing results.
  - 3. Base Course Placement (Paving for sidewalks). Immediately after placement of all base material, but prior to the installation, paving or finish grading, Landscape Architect, upon notification, will review work for grades, slopes, compliance with specifications and compaction testing results.

- 4. Fill placement and Finish Grading. Immediately after fill placement, finish grading and completion of all other work of this Section, Landscape Architect, upon notification, will review work for grades, slopes, compliance with specifications and determine if additional work is necessary.
- B. Contractor shall make any adjustments identified during these inspections.

# 1.10 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

- A. Protection: Use all means necessary to protect materials of this Section before, during, and after installation and protect installed work of other trades.
- B. Replacement: In the event of damage, immediately make all repairs and replacements as directed by Landscape Architect.

# 1.11 ENVIRONMENTAL/SITE WORKING CONDITIONS

- A. Weather: Excavation and fill operations must be done in weather which is dry for a minimum two days following any rainy periods. Exceptions must be approved by Landscape Architect.
- B. Protection: Protect bearing surfaces from moisture by covering with impervious membrane or installation of minimum of 12" crushed rock, and cessation of work for a minimum of two days following rainy periods.

## PART 2 PRODUCTS

## 2.01 FILL MATERIALS

A. Crushed Rock for concrete paving: Mechanically crushed, fragments of rock, maximum size <sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub>". Graded in accordance with ASTM C136 with no more than 5% passing a #200 sieve; free of organic material or other deleterious substances.

#### 2.02 OTHER MATERIALS

- A. Irrigation Sleeves: SCH 40 PVC. Sized per plans.
- B. Erosion Control Materials: As specified on drawings.
- C. Imported Sandy Loam Topsoil: Imported, natural, fertile, friable, topsoil loam with at least 10% humus, free from subsoils, clay, stones, lumps, roots, clods, sticks, weeds, weed seed and other foreign matter. Submit one-gallon bagged sample to landscape architect for approval prior to placement.

# PART 3 EXECUTION

#### 3.01 PREPARATION

A. Refer to requirements in Section 02100. Follow all said requirements as necessary.

# 3.02 DUST CONTROL

A. Employ measures as necessary to control and minimize dust. Sprinkle dust-producing soil as needed to prevent damage or nuisance to work, workers, or neighboring properties.

# 3.03 EXCAVATION

- A. Perform earthwork only during periods of relatively dry soil conditions. Exceptions to be approved by Landscape Architect.
- B. For paved areas, excavate only those areas which can be immediately covered with rock or from areas that can be protected from traffic. Work only from an area where material has yet to be removed or from staging area already containing base material.
- C. Excavate remaining on-site material to whatever depths are required for work shown on drawings or specified herein. Remove heavy growths of grass and roots from areas before stripping.

- D. Do not excavate saturated material unless approved by Landscape Architect.
- E. Remove excavated material and strippings from site.
- F. When excavation through roots of trees to remain is unavoidable, perform work by hand, cutting roots carefully and cleanly. Notify Landscape Architect prior to cutting roots over 2" in diameter of existing trees to remain.
- G. Subgrade areas shall be cleanly cut to firm undisturbed soil. Trim excavation and leave free of loose matter.
- H. Correct over-excavation by placing and proof-rolling crushed rock. Backfill to subgrade elevation.
- I. Upon discovery of unknown of concealed conditions, cease work and notify Landscape Architect.
- J. All paving areas are to be drained of surface and ground water during all earthwork and construction operations.

## 3.04 SUBGRADE PREPARATION AT CONCRETE PAVING

- A. Paving subgrades shall be solid, compacted or undisturbed native material, or material placed as corrections to observation and/or proof-rolling tests or as corrections to over-excavation as specified herein. See also details.
- B. Landscape Architect or Owner to observe subgrades immediately following excavation to evaluate whether additional excavation and/or preparation is needed. Notify Owner to conduct <u>proof-roll as directed</u>.
- C. Cut out soft areas of subgrade not passing observation and/or proof-roll tests as directed. Backfill with crushed rock and re-proof-roll as directed.
- D. Should bearing surfaces be softened by water or frost, re-excavate to solid bearing and backfill with crushed rock and proof-roll as correction to over-excavation as specified herein.

# 3.05 FILLING, BASE COURSE INSTALLATION AND ROUGH GRADING

- A. Do not start until completion and acceptance of all specified review, observations and subgrade testing. Before placing fill, remove all screeds, screed stakes, other wood, wood debris, and materials subject to rot, corrosion or termites.
- B. Fill to elevations shown on drawings or as specified. Use unfrozen materials. Filling includes base course installations under paving and excavated fill at landscape areas and berms.
- C. Fill only when fill materials are within optimum moisture content.
- D. Fill systematically, as soon as possible, to allow maximum time for natural settlement. Do not fill over porous, wet, or spongy subgrades.
- E. Make changes in grade gradual. Blend slopes into level areas where occurs.
- F. Place and compact fill materials in continuous layers not exceeding 8" loose depth.
- G. Maintain optimum moisture content of fill materials to attain required compaction density. Place fill in relatively dry state at areas where scheduled.
- H. Refer to Placement Schedule herein for specific materials, depths, and compaction requirements.
- I. Do not subject base course or fills to construction traffic except at staging areas.

# 3.06 PLACEMENT SCHEDULE

- A. Under Vehicular Loaded Concrete: Crushed rock at 6" compacted thickness. Compact to 98%.
- B. Under Concrete Paving: Crushed rock minimum 4" compacted thickness. Compact to 98 percent. See also plan drawings.
- C. At Landscape Areas (areas disturbed by construction): Imported sandy loam topsoil to finished grade.

## 3.07 EROSION CONTROL

A. Maintain, repair, or replace erosion control measures installed as part of the work.

**ENVIRONMENTAL PERMIT CONDITIONS** required by Oregon Department of State Lands, Oregon Department of Environmental Quality and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers:

The following erosion control measures (and others as appropriate) shall be installed prior to construction and maintained during and after construction as appropriate to prevent erosion and minimize movement of soil into waters of the state.

- 1. Pre-construction Resource Area Fencing or Flagging: Prior to any site grading, the boundaries of the avoided wetlands, waterways, and riparian areas adjacent to the project site must be surrounded by noticeable construction fencing or flagging. The marked areas must be maintained during construction of the project and be removed immediately upon project completion.
- 2. All exposed soils shall be stabilized during and after construction in order to prevent erosion and sedimentation.
- 3. Maintain an adequate supply of materials necessary to control erosion at the project construction site.
- 4. Filter bags, sediment fences, sediment traps or catch basins, leave strips or berms, or other measures shall be used to prevent movement of soil into waterways and wetlands.
- 5. To prevent erosion, use of compost berms, impervious materials or other equally effective methods, shall be used to protect soil stockpiled during rain events or when the stockpile site is not moved or reshaped for more than 48 hours. Erosion of stockpiles is prohibited.
- 6. Unless part of the authorized permanent fill, all construction access points through, and staging areas in, riparian and wetland areas shall use removable pads or mats to prevent soil compaction. However, in some wetland areas under dry summer conditions, this requirement may be waived upon approval by DSL. At project completion, disturbed areas with soil exposed by construction activities shall be stabilized by mulching and native vegetative plantings/seeding. Sterile grass may be used instead of native vegetation for temporary sediment control. If soils are to remain exposed more than seven days after completion of the work, they shall be covered with erosion control pads, mats or similar erosion control devices until vegetative stabilization is installed.
- 7. Where vegetation is used for erosion control on slopes steeper than 2:1, a tackified seed mulch shall be used so the seed does not wash away before germination and rooting.
- 8. Dredged or other excavated material shall be placed on upland areas having stable slopes and shall be prevented from eroding back into waterways and wetlands.
- Use removable pads or mats to prevent soil compaction at all construction access points through, and staging areas in, riparian or wetland areas to prevent soil compaction, unless otherwise authorized by DEQ.
- 10. Place clean aggregate at all construction at all construction entrances and utilize other BMPs, including, but not limited to truck or wheel washes, when earth moving equipment is leaving the site and traveling on paved surfaces. The tracking of sediment off site by vehicles is prohibited.
- 11. Inspect erosion control measures daily and maintain erosion control measures as often as necessary until soils become stabilized o ensure the continued effectiveness of measures. Erosion control measures must remain in place until all exposed soil is stabilized. (If monitoring or inspection shows that the erosion and sediment controls are ineffective, the Contractor must mobilize immediately to make repairs, install replacements or install additional controls as necessary. If sediment has reached 1/3 of the exposed height of a sediment or erosion control, the Contractor must remove the sediment to its original contour.
- 12. All erosion control structures shall be removed when the project is complete and soils are stabilized and vegetated.

## 3.08 CLEANING

- A. Upon completion of work of this Section, promptly remove from the site all scraps, debris and surplus material.
- B. Leave area clean and raked, ready for subsequent activity.

#### END OF SECTION 02200

## SECTION 02520 - CONCRETE PAVING

## PART 1 GENERAL

### 1.01 CONTRACT CONDITIONS

A. Work of this section is bound by the Contract conditions in additions to these specifications and accompanying drawings.

## 1.02 WORK INCLUDED

A. Concrete sidewalks

## 1.03 RELATED SECTIONS

- A. Site Preparation and Clearing, Section 02100
- B. Earthwork and Grading, Section 02200

## 1.04 REFERENCES

- A. ACI 301 Specifications for Structural Concrete.
- B. ACI 304 Recommended Practice for Measuring, Mixing, Transporting and Placing Concrete.
- C. ASTM A615 Deformed and Plain Billet-Steel for Concrete Reinforcement.
- D. ASTM C33 Concrete Aggregates.
- E. ASTM C94 Ready Mix Concrete.
- F. ASTM C150 Portland Cement
- G. ASTM C260 Air-Entraining Admixtures for Concrete.
- H. ASTM C309 Liquid Membrane-Forming Compounds for Curing Concrete.
- I. ASTM C494 Chemical Admixtures for Concrete.

#### 1.05 SUBMITTALS FOR REVIEW

- A. Submit mix design from designated batch plant for each class of concrete for approval.
- B. Product Data: Provide data on joint filler, sealant, backer rod, admixtures and curing compounds.

# 1.06 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Perform reinforcement work in accordance to CRSI Manual for Standard Practice.
- B. Obtain cementitious materials from same source throughout.

# 1.07 REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

A. Conform to City of Albany Municipal standards for paving work on public property.

# 1.08 ENVIRONMENTAL/SITE WORKING CONDITIONS

- A. Weather: Concrete shall not be installed during rain, when the base course is frozen, or when expected weather conditions will prevent the proper handling, finishing or compaction of mixtures.
- B. Protection During Inclement Weather:
  - 1. Protect bearing surfaces from moisture by covering with impervious membrane or cessation of work for a minimum of 24 hours following rainy weather.
  - 2. Protect installed and finished concrete with impervious membrane, blocked and supported to remain free from contact with concrete surface for a minimum of 5 days following installation.
  - 3. Cold Weather:
    - a. Follow recommendations per ACI 306 Recommended Practices for Cold Weather Concrete, when air temperature is expected to fall below 40 degrees F.
    - b. Protect concrete from physical and chemical damage or reduced strength caused by frost, freezing, or low temperatures.
    - c. Ensure forms, reinforcing steel, adjacent surfaces and free from frost, snow or ice.
    - d. Do not use frozen materials or materials containing ice or snow.

#### 1.09 INSPECTIONS

- A. Request visitation by Landscape Architect minimum 48 hours in advance. The following is required:
  - 1. Base Course Readiness. Immediately prior to placement of concrete, Landscape Architect, upon notification, will review base course condition and will determine if condition is acceptable for concrete placement.
  - Formwork and Reinforcement. Immediately prior to placement of concrete, Landscape Architect, upon notification, will review formwork installation, including bracing, blocking, anchoring, reinforcement installation, and joint preparation and will determine if condition is acceptable for concrete placement.
  - 3. Concrete Installation. Following placement of each concrete installation, Landscape Architect, upon notification, will review work for installation, jointing, and finishing.
- B. Make any corrections identified during these reviews at no additional cost to Owner.

#### PART 2 PRODUCTS

#### 2.01 FORM MATERIALS

- A. Wood form material, profiled to suit conditions. At concrete exposed to view, conform to PS-1.HDO grade, class I to eliminate grain form.
- B. Form files and embedded items: As needed for complete installation and as shown on drawings.
- C. Form treatment for plywood forms: Coat with approved stainless form oil, using minimum quantity for proper form removal.

## 2.02 REINFORCEMENT

A. Reinforcing Steel: ASTM A615; 40 ksi yield grade; deformed billet No. 4 steel bars; unfinished. See details for steel dowels.

B. Reinforcing Accessories: Conform to CRSI, Manual of Standard Practice for Reinforced Concrete Construction. Include all devices needed for complete installation.

## 2.03 CONCRETE MATERIALS

- A. Portland Cement: ASTM CISO, Type 1 Normal, Portland type, gray color.
- B. Fine and Coarse Aggregates: ASTM C33, washed clean and free of mud, clay, soil and deleterious substances. Maximum size <sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub> inch and not more than 1/5 of narrowest space between forms, 1/3 of slab depths nor <sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub> of min. space between reinforcing bars.

# 2.04 ACCESSORIES

- A. Curing Compound: ASTM C309, Type 1Class A or B; Kure N Seal manufactured by Sonneborne or approved.
- B. Joint Sealant and Backer Rod: As approved by Landscape Architect

#### 2.05 CONCRETE MIX

- A. Mix concrete in accordance with ASTM C94.
- B. Provide concrete of the following characteristics for walks, curbs, walls, footings and all exterior concrete:

1. Compressive strength 28 days – 4000 psi

Maximum slump
 Minimum sacks of cement per cubic yard
 Air Entrainment
 percent

C. Use accelerating admixtures in cold weather only when approved by Landscape Architect. Use of admixtures will not relax cold weather placement requirements.

# 2.06 SOURCE QUALITY CONTROL AND TESTS

- A. Submit proposed mix design of each class of concrete for review and approved prior to commencement of work.
- B. Tests on cement and aggregates may be performed to ensure conformance with specified requirements.
- C. Test samples to be done by owner's agent in accordance with ACI 301.

# PART 3 EXECUTION

# 3.01 EXAMINATION

- A. Verify base conditions under provisions of Section 02200.
- B. Verify compacted aggregate base is acceptable and ready to support paving and imposed loads.
- C. Verify gradients and elevations of base are correct.

## 3.02 PREPARATION

- A. Moisten base to minimize absorption of water from fresh concrete.
- B. Notify Landscape Architect minimum 24 hours prior to commencement of concreting operations.

#### 3.03 FORMING

- A. Place and secure forms to correct location, dimension, profile, and gradient.
- B. Assemble formwork to permit easy stripping and dismantling without damaging concrete.

## 3.04 REINFORCEMENT

A. Place reinforcement as shown on drawings.

# 3.05 FORMWORK INSTALLATION

- A. Minimize form joints. Symmetrically align joints and make watertight to prevent leakage of material at exposed locations.
- B. Arrange and assemble formwork to permit dismantling and stripping, so that concrete is not damaged during formwork removal. Arrange forms to allow stripping without removal of shoring where required to remain in place.
- C. Provide bracing to ensure stability of formwork. Strengthen formwork to resist construction loads.
- D. Set forms flush with adjacent forms, so that joints will not be apparent in exposed concrete surfaces.
- E. Conform to shapes, sizes, lines and locations for concrete work shown on drawings.
- F. Apply form release agent on formwork in accordance to manufacturer's instructions. Apply prior to placement of reinforcement or embedded items.

# 3.06 PLACING CONCRETE

- A. Place concrete as specified herein and shown on drawings.
- B. Ensure reinforcement, inserts, embedded parts and formed joints are not disturbed during concrete placement.
- C. Place concrete continuously over the full width of the panel and between pre-determined construction joints. Do not break or interrupt successive pours such that cold joints occur.

#### 3.07 COMPACTION

- A. Employ mechanical high frequency vibrators to consolidate concrete around reinforcements, into corners and angles of forms, and to exclude rock pockets, air bubbles and honeycomb formations.
- B. Hold mechanical vibrator in one spot no longer than 30 seconds, keep in constant motion, insert and withdraw at points approximately 18 inches on center. Maintain in vertical position when penetrating concrete.
- C. Transporting concrete with vibrator not permitted.
- D. Maintain spare vibrator on job site while placing concrete.

## 3.08 JOINTS

- A. Provide tooled scored joints intervals that equal the width of the sidewalk between sidewalks and curbs, unless shown otherwise on drawings.
- B. Saw cut contraction joints 3/16-inch wide at an optimum time after finishing where indicated or if needed. Cut 1/3 into depth of slab.

# 3.09 FINISHING

- A. Sidewalk and Plaza Paving: Light broom with trowel joint edges.
- B. Direction of Texturing: Transverse to pavement direction.
- C. Detectable Warning: See Civil drawings.
- D. Place curing compound, sealer on exposed concrete surfaces immediately after finishing. Apply in accordance with manufacturer's instructions.

## 3.12 CURING

- A. Curing Period: Not less than 7 days at 50 degrees F. minimum.
- B. Exposed Slabs: Keep wet at least 14 days following concrete placement.

# 3.13 TOLERANCES

- A. Section 01410 Testing and Laboratory Services
- B. Maximum Variation of Surface Flatness: 1/4 inch in 10 ft.
- C. Maximum Variation from True Position: 1/4.

# 3.14 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

- A. Section 01410 Testing and Laboratory Services
- B. Testing may be performed by independent agent selected and paid for by Owner. Notify Landscape Architect and testing agency 48 hours prior to need for testing.

## 3.15 PROTECTION

- A. Immediately after placement, protect pavement from premature drying, excessive hot or cold temperatures, and mechanical injury.
- B. Do not permit vehicular traffic over pavement until 75 percent design strength of concrete has been achieved.
- C. Protect work specified herein against damage and discoloration. Protect other work against damage and discoloration caused by work of this subsection.

## 3.16 DEFECTIVE WORK

- A. Remove, replace or repair when directed by Landscape Architect, surfaces which show excessive cracks, voids, air pockets; any slabs which do not drain properly, and other defective concrete.
- B. Remove honeycombed and other defective concrete down to sound concrete. If chipping is necessary, shape edges perpendicular to surface or slightly undercut. Feathered edges not permitted.

## 3.17 CLEANING AND REPAIRING

- A. Remove debris from project site upon work completion or sooner, if directed.
- B. Including work other sections, clean, repair, and touch-up, or replace when directed, products which have been soiled, discolored, or damaged by work of this section.

END OF SECTION 02520

# SECTION V: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS - BID ITEMS

## <u>Item No. 1 – Mobilization:</u>

See Section IV: Site Work Technical Specifications and the Construction Drawings

Payment for this bid item will be on a lump-sum basis and will include all equipment, labor, materials, and incidentals required to complete the work.

# <u>Item No. 2 – Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control and Tree Protection:</u>

See also Section IV: Site Work Technical Specifications and the Construction Drawings

This item includes all work related to procuring, installing, and maintaining erosion prevention and sediment control (EPSC) measures for the duration of the project as shown on the Construction Drawings. The Contractor shall submit an EPSC plan at the preconstruction conference for approval by the Engineer. This plan shall include measures to achieve the followings goals:

- Prevent the erosion of exposed soils by wind or rain
- Prevent sediment-laden waters from running onto streets, or into storm drains, ditches, drainage features, wetlands, creeks, streams, lakes, or rivers.
- Maintain clean street and sidewalk surfaces
- Quickly respond to rainfall events with additional measures as needed

The plan shall emphasize measures designed to prevent erosion rather than control sediment. This will require that sediment-laden water from trench dewatering to be processed through mechanical or chemical treatment prior to discharge. Sole reliance on inlet protection to control sediment will be prohibited in most cases. The approved EPSC plan shall be implemented prior to the beginning of ground disturbing activities.

In the event the Contractor fails to provide and maintain EPSC measures that prevent sediment from leaving the construction site, the City may require that work be stopped immediately. The City will not grant contract extensions for work stoppages based on the Contractor's failure to provide and maintain EPSC measures that prevent sediment from leaving the construction site. If sediment-laden water continues to leave the site after one working day following notification by the Engineer, the City may install additional EPSC measures at the Contractor's expense. The City will deduct two times (200%) the City's actual cost, which will include all labor, equipment, and materials involved, from any payments due or coming due to the Contractor.

Payment for this bid item will be on a lump-sum basis and will include all equipment, labor, materials, and incidentals required to complete the work.

# <u>Item No. 3 – Concrete Sidewalk - Standard:</u>

See Section IV: Site Work Technical Specifications and the Construction Drawings

Payment for this bid item will be on a square yard basis and will include all equipment, labor, materials, and incidentals required to complete the work.

# <u>Item No. 4 – Concrete Sidewalk – Vehicle Load:</u>

See Section IV: Site Work Technical Specifications and the Construction Drawings

Payment for this bid item will be on a square yard basis and will include all equipment, labor, materials, and incidentals required to complete the work.

# <u>Item No. 5 – Conduit, Wiring, and All Other Electrical Equipment as Required to Extend Electrical Service to Seven Light Locations:</u>

See Section IV: Site Work Technical Specifications and the Construction Drawings

Payment for this bid item will be on a lump-sum basis and will include all equipment, labor, materials, and incidentals required to complete the work.

# <u>Item No. 6 – Concrete Light Pole Bases</u>:

See Section IV: Site Work Technical Specifications and the Construction Drawings

Payment for this bid item will be on a per each basis and will include all equipment, labor, materials, and incidentals required to complete the work.

# LIST OF APPENDICES

- APPENDIX A HUD 4010: FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS
- APPENDIX B CONTRACTOR'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF FORM HUD-4010
- APPENDIX C DAVIS-BACON PREVAILING WAGE RATES
- APPENDIX D CERTIFICATE FROM CONTRACTOR APPOINTING OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE TO SUPERVISE PAYMENT OF EMPLOYEE HUD FORM 5282
- APPENDIX E CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
- APPENDIX F OREGON DEPARTMENT OF STATE LANDS STATE LANDS PERMIT included as separate document
- APPENDIX G U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS REPORT included as separate document
- APPENDIX H DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 401 PERMIT included as separate document

CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS (11" X 17") - included as separate document

## APPENDIX A

## **HUD 4010: FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS**

## Federal Labor Standards Provisions

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Office of Labor Relations

#### Applicability

The Project or Program to which the construction work covered by this contract pertains is being assisted by the United States of America and the following Federal Labor Standards Provisions are included in this Contract pursuant to the provisions applicable to such Federal assistance.

A. 1. (i) Minimum Wages. All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work, will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under Section I(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs, which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classification and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible, place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

(ii) (a) Any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. HUD shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefor only when the following criteria have been met:

- (1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (b) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and HUD or its designee agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by HUD or its designee to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, D.C. 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB control number 1215-0140.)
- (c) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics be employed in the classification or their representatives, and HUD or its designee do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), HUD or its designee shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of HUD or its designee, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)
- (d) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to subparagraphs (1)(ii)(b) or (c) of this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- (iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part

form HUD-4010 (06/2009) ref. Handbook 1344.1 of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.)

- 2. Withholding. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the wages required by the contract, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased. HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, disburse such amounts withheld for and on account of the contractor or subcontractor to the respective employees to whom they The Comptroller General shall make such disbursements in the case of direct Davis-Bacon Act contracts.
- 3. (i) Payrolls and basic records. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in Section I(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in Section I(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been

- communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Numbers 1215-0140 and 1215-0017.)
- (ii) (a) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to HUD or its designee if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i) except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include an individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security number). The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose from Wage and Hour Division Web the site http://www.dol.gov/esa/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to HUD or its designee if the agency is a party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee, the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements. It is not a violation of this subparagraph for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submission to HUD or its designee. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 1215-0149.)
- (b) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:
- (1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be provided under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), and that such information is correct and complete;

Previous editions are obsolete form HUD-4010 (06/2009)
Page 2 of 5 ref. Handbook 1344.1

- (2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR Part 3;
- (3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- (c) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by subparagraph A.3.(ii)(b).
- (d) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of Title 31 of the United States Code.
- (iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under subparagraph A.3.(i) available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of HUD or its designee or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.

# 4. Apprentices and Trainees.

(i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is

Trainees. Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant ',to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by

Previous editions are obsolete form HUD-4010 (06/2009)
Page 3 of 5 ref. Handbook 1344.1

the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

- (iii) Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under 29 CFR Part 5 shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 CFR Part 30.
- Compliance with Copeland Act requirements. The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 which are incorporated by reference in this contract
- 6. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor will insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in subparagraphs 1 through 11 in this paragraph A and such other clauses as HUD or its designee may by appropriate instructions require, and a copy of the applicable prevailing wage decision, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in this paragraph.
- Contract termination; debarment. A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements.
   All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract
- 9. Disputes concerning labor standards. Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and HUD or its designee, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.
- 10. (i) Certification of Eligibility. By entering into this contract the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be

- awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.
- (ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24.
- (iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001. Additionally, U.S. Criminal Code, Section 1 01 0, Title 18, U.S.C., "Federal Housing Administration transactions", provides in part: "Whoever, for the purpose of . . . influencing in any way the action of such Administration..... makes, utters or publishes any statement knowing the same to be false..... shall be fined not more than \$5,000 or imprisoned not more than two years, or both."
- 11. Complaints, Proceedings, or Testimony by Employees. No laborer or mechanic to whom the wage, salary, or other labor standards provisions of this Contract are applicable shall be discharged or in any other manner discriminated against by the Contractor or any subcontractor because such employee has filed any complaint or instituted or caused to be instituted any proceeding or has testified or is about to testify in any proceeding under or relating to the labor standards applicable under this Contract to his employer.
- B. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. The provisions of this paragraph B are applicable where the amount of the prime contract exceeds \$100,000. As used in this paragraph, the terms "laborers" and "mechanics" include watchmen and guards.
- (1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which the individual is employed on such work to work in excess of 40 hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours workweek.
- (2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of 40 hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in sub paragraph (1) of this paragraph.

Previous editions are obsolete form HUD-4010 (06/2009)
Page 4 of 5 ref. Handbook 1344.1

- (3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contract, or any other Federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act which is held by the same prime contractor such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in subparagraph (2) of this paragraph.
- (4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in subparagraph (1) through (4) of this paragraph and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in subparagraphs (1) through (4) of this paragraph.
- C. Health and Safety. The provisions of this paragraph C are applicable where the amount of the prime contract exceeds \$100,000.
- (1) No laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his health and safety as determined under construction safety and health standards promulgated by the Secretary of Labor by regulation.
- (2) The Contractor shall comply with all regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Title 29 Part 1926 and failure to comply may result in imposition of sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, (Public Law 91-54, 83 Stat 96). 40 USC 3701 et seq.
- (3) The contractor shall include the provisions of this paragraph in every subcontract so that such provisions will be binding on each subcontractor. The contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontractor as the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such provisions.

Previous editions are obsolete form HUD-4010 (08/2009)
Page 5 of 5 ref. Handbook 1344.1

# APPENDIX B

# CONTRACTOR'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF FORM HUD-4010

Project Name: PK-19-01, Sunrise Park Path

# CONTRACTOR'S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT OF HUD-4010 AND COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL LAWS

This certification must be completed by all prospective Bidders and Subcontractors.

To Whom it May Concern:

I/We, the undersigned Contractor or Subcontractor, acknowledge receipt of the HUD-4010 Form and have reviewed the Federal Labor Standards Provisions and carefully examined these requirements and the Special Provisions in Section II and III that cover other federal laws and requirements, and considered these regulations in our bid/quotation. I/We fully understand that any violations of these requirements or false or fraudulent statements or entries may result in fines or imprisonment as outlined in federal law (U.S.C. Title 18, Sec. 1001) and may result in being removed from the City of Albany's bidders list for a period of not less than three years.

Name of Contractor	Signature of Authorized Representative
Title	Company Name
Address	Date
City/State/Zip	
Telephone Number	Contractor's License Number

## APPENDIX C

# **DAVIS-BACON WAGE DETERMINATION**

"General Decision Number: OR20190001 06/14/2019

Superseded General Decision Number: OR20180001

State: Oregon

Construction Type: Highway

Counties: Oregon Statewide.

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

Note: Under Executive Order (EO) 13658, an hourly minimum wage of \$10.60 for calendar year 2019 applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2015. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must pay all workers in any classification listed on this wage determination at least \$10.60 per hour (or the applicable wage rate listed on this wage determination, if it is higher) for all hours spent performing on the contract in calendar year 2019. If this contract is covered by the EO and a classification considered necessary for performance of work on the contract does not appear on this wage determination, the contractor must pay workers in that classification at least the wage rate determined through the conformance process set forth in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) (or the EO minimum wage rate, if it is higher than the conformed wage rate). The EO minimum wage rate will be adjusted annually. Please note that this EO applies to the above-mentioned types of contracts entered into by the federal government that are subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but it does not apply to contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts, including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(2)-(60). Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available

beta.SAM.gov Page 2 of 26

at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification	Number	Publication	Date
0		01/04/2019	
1		01/25/2019	
2		02/01/2019	
3		06/14/2019	

BROR0001-006 06/01/2018

BAKER, BENTON (NORTH), CLACKAMAS, CLATSOP, COLUMBIA, GILLIAM,
HARNEY, HOOD RIVER, LINCOLN (NORTH), LINN (NORTH), MALHEUR
(NORTH), MARION, MORROW, MULTNOMAH, POLK, SHERMAN, TILLAMOOK,
UMATILLA, UNION, WALLOWA, WASCO (NORTH), WASHINGTON AND YAMHILL
COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
BRICKLAYER	\$ 38.00	19.83

BROR0001-007 06/01/2018

BENTON (SOUTH), CROOK, DESCHUTES, GRANT, JACKSON, JEFFERSON, KLAMATH, LAKE, LANE, LINCOLN (SOUTH), LINN (SOUTH), MALHEUR (SOUTH), WASCO (SOUTH) AND WHEELER COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
BRICKLAYER	.\$ 38.00	19.83
CARP9001-001 06/01/2018		

ZONE 1:

Rates Fringes

beta.SAM.gov Page 3 of 26

```
Carpenters:
    CARPENTERS.....$ 37.64
                                             16.83
    DIVER STANDBY.....$ 49.69
                                             16.83
    DIVERS TENDERS.....$ 43.73
                                             16.83
    DIVERS.....$ 87.73
                                             16.83
    MANIFOLD AND/OR
    DECOMPRESSION CHAMBER
    OPERATORS.....$ 43.73
                                             16.83
    MILLWRIGHTS.....$ 38.17
                                             16.83
    PILEDRIVERS.....$ 38.71
                                             16.83
DEPTH PAY:
50 to 100 feet $1.00 per foot over 50 feet
151 to 200 feet 2.00 per foot over 151 feet
Zone Differential (Add to Zone 1 rates):
Zone 2 - $0.85
Zone 3 - 1.25
Zone 4 - 1.70
Zone 5 - 2.00
Zone 6 - 3.00
 ZONE 1 - All jobs or projects located within 30 miles of the
 respective City Hall
 ZONE 2 - More than 30 miles and less than 40 miles from the
 respective City Hall
 ZONE 3 - More than 40 miles and less than 50 miles from the
 respective City Hall
 ZONE 4 - More than 50 miles and less than 60 miles from the
 respective City Hall
 ZONE 5 - More than 60 miles and less than 70 miles from the
 respective City Hall
ZONE 6 - More than 70 miles from the respective City Hall.
```

beta.SAM.gov Page 4 of 26

BASEPOINTS CITIES FOR CARPENTERS (EXCLUDING MILLWRIGHTS, PILEDRIVERS AND DIVERS)

ALBANY ASTORIA BAKER BEND BROOKINGS BURNS COOS BAY CORVALLIS EUGENE GOLDENDALE GRANTS PASS HERMISTON HOOD RIVER KLAMATH FALLS LAGRANDE LAKEVIEW LONGVIEW MADRAS MEDFORD McMINNVILLE NEWPORT ONTARIO OREGON CITY PENDLETON PORTLAND PORT ORFORD REEDSPORT ROSEBURG SALEM ST. HELENS TILLAMOOK THE DALLES VANCOUVER

BASEPOINTS FOR MILLWRIGHTS

EUGENE NORTH BEND LONGVIEW
PORTLAND MEDFORD THE DALLES

VANCOUVER

BASEPOINTS FOR PILEDRIVERS AND DIVERS

ASTORIA BEND COOS BAY
EUGENE KLAMATH FALLS LONGVIEW
MEDFORD NEWPORT PORTLAND
ROSEBURG SALEM THE DALLES

-----

CLACKAMAS, CLATSOP, COLUMBIA, HOOD RIVER, MULTNOMAH, TILLAMOOK, WASCO, WASHINGTON, SHERMAN AND YAMHILL (NORTH) COUNTIES

Rates Fringes

CABLE SPLICER.....\$ 44.22

21.50

<sup>\*</sup> ELEC0048-006 01/01/2019

beta.SAM.gov Page 5 of 26

ELECTRICIAN.....\$ 44.85 23.57

HOURLY ZONE PAY:

Hourly Zone Pay shall be paid on jobs located outside of the free zone computed from the city center of the following listed cities:

Portland, The Dalles, Hood River, Tillamook, Seaside and Astoria

Zone Pay:

Zone 1: 31-50 miles \$1.50/hour
Zone 2: 51-70 miles \$3.50/hour
Zone 3: 71-90 miles \$5.50/hour
Zone 4: Beyond 90 miles \$9.00/hour

\*These are not miles driven. Zones are based on Delorrne Street Atlas USA 2006 plus.

\_\_\_\_\_

ELEC0112-001 06/01/2018

BAKER, GILLIAM, GRANT, MORROW, UMATILLA, UNION, WALLOWA, AND WHEELER COUNTIES

	Rates	Fringes
CABLE SPLICER	\$ 45.68	20.60
ELECTRICIAN	\$ 43.50	20.54

ELEC0280-003 01/01/2019

BENTON, CROOK, DESCHUTES, JEFFERSON, LANE (EAST OF A LINE RUNNING NORTH AND SOUTH FROM THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF COOS COUNTY TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LINCOLN COUNTY), LINN, MARION, POLK AND YAMHILL (SOUTHERN HALF) COUNTIES

beta.SAM.gov Page 6 of 26

	Rates	Fringes	
CABLE SPLICER	\$ 41.15	17.75	
ELECTRICIAN	\$ 43.55	19.25	
DI DG0 201 006 01 /01 /2010			

ELEC0291-006 01/01/2019

MALHEUR COUNTY

	Rates	Fringes
CABLE SPLICER	.\$ 33.83	6%+12.61
ELECTRICIAN	.\$ 30.75	6%+12.61

<sup>\*</sup> ELEC0659-004 01/01/2019

DOUGLAS (EAST OF A LINE RUNNING NORTH AND SOUTH FROM THE NE CORNER OF COOS COUNTY TO THE SE CORNER OF LINCOLN COUNTY), HARNEY, JACKSON, JOSEPHINE, KLAMATH AND LAKE COUNTIES

Ŧ	Rates	Fringes
CABLE SPLICER\$	57.94	18.27
ELECTRICIAN\$	35.19	16.80

ZONE PAY: BASE POINTS ARE FROM THE DOWNTOWN POST OFFICE IN GRANTS PASS, KLAMATH FALLS, ROSEBURG AND MEDFORD.

ZONE 1:	0-20 MILES	\$0.00 PER HOUR
ZONE 2:	> 20-30 MILES	\$1.50 PER HOUR
ZONE 3:	>30-40 MILES	\$3.30 PER HOUR
ZONE 4:	>40-50 MILES	\$5.00 PER HOUR
ZONE 5:	>50-60 MILES	\$6.80 PER HOUR
ZONE 6:	>60 MILES	\$9.50 PER HOUR

<sup>\*</sup>THESE ARE NOT MILES DRIVEN. ZONES ARE BASED ON DELORNE STREET ATLAS USA 5.0.

beta.SAM.gov Page 7 of 26

\_\_\_\_\_

ELEC0932-004 01/01/2018

COOS, CURRY, LINCOLN, DOUGLAS AND LANE COUNTIES (AREA LYING WEST OF A LINE NORTH AND SOUTH FROM THE N.E. CORNER OF COOS COUNTY TO THE S.E. CORNER OF LINCOLN COUNTY)

	Rates	Fringes
ELECTRICIAN	.\$ 38.55	17.46

ENGI0701-005 01/01/2018

ZONE 1:

POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATORS (See Footnote C)

	Rates	Fringes
POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATOR		
GROUP 1	\$ 41.65	14.35
GROUP 1A	\$ 43.73	14.35
GROUP 1B	\$ 45.82	14.35
GROUP 2	\$ 39.47	14.35
GROUP 3	\$ 38.59	14.35
GROUP 4	\$ 37.51	14.35
GROUP 5	\$ 36.27	14.35
GROUP 6	\$ 33.05	14.35

Zone Differential (add to Zone 1 rates):

Zone 2 - \$3.00

Zone 3 - \$6.00

For the following metropolitan counties: MULTNOMAH;
CLACKAMAS; MARION; WASHINGTON; YAMHILL; AND COLUMBIA;
CLARK; AND COWLITZ COUNTY, WASHINGTON WITH MODIFICATIONS AS
INDICATED:

beta.SAM.gov Page 8 of 26

All jobs or projects located in Multnomah, Clackamas and Marion Counties, West of the western boundary of Mt. Hood National Forest and West of Mile Post 30 on Interstate 84 and West of Mile Post 30 on State Highway 26 and West of Mile Post 30 on Highway 22 and all jobs or projects located in Yamhill County, Washington County and Columbia County and all jobs or porjects located in Clark & Cowlitz County, Washington except that portion of Cowlitz County in the Mt. St. Helens ""Blast Zone"" shall receive Zone I pay for all classifications.

All jobs or projects located in the area outside the identified boundary above, but less than 50 miles from the Portland City Hall shall receive Zone II pay for all classifications.

All jobs or projects located more than 50 miles from the Portland City Hall, but outside the identified border above, shall receive Zone III pay for all classifications.

For the following cities: ALBANY; BEND; COOS BAY; EUGENE; GRANTS PASS; KLAMATH FALLS; MEDFORD; ROSEBURG

All jobs or projects located within 30 miles of the respective city hall of the above mentioned cities shall receive Zone I pay for all classifications.

All jobs or projects located more than 30 miles and less than 50 miles from the respective city hall of the above mentioned cities shall receive Zone II pay for all classifications.

All jobs or projects located more than 50 miles from the respective city hall of the above mentioned cities shall receive Zone III pay for all classifications.

POWER EQUIPMENT OPERATORS CLASSIFICATIONS

beta.SAM.gov Page 9 of 26

#### Group 1

Concrete Batch Plan and or Wet mix three (3) units or more; Crane, Floating one hundred and fifty (150) ton but less than two hundred and fifty (250) ton; Crane, two hundred (200) ton through two hundred ninety nine (299) ton with two hundred foot (200') boom or less (including jib, inserts and/or attachments); Crane, ninety (90) ton through one hundred ninety nine (199) ton with over two hundred (200') boom Including jib, inserts and/or attachments); Crane, Tower Crane with one hundred seventy five foot (175') tower or less and with less than two hundred foot (200') jib; Crane, Whirley ninety (90) ton and over; Helicopter when used in erecting work

#### Group 1A

Crane, floating two hundred fifty (250) ton and over; Crane, two hundred (200) ton through two hundred ninety nine (299) ton, with over two hundred foot (200') boom (including jib, inserts and/or attachments); Crane, three hundred (300) ton through three hundred ninety nine (399) ton; Crane, Tower Crane with over one hundred seventy five foot (175') tower or over two hundred foot (200') jib; Crane, tower Crane on rail system or 2nd tower or more in work radius

# Group 1B

Crane, three hundred (300) ton through three hundred ninety nine (399) ton, with over two hundred foot (200') boom (including jib, inserts and/or attachments); Floating crane, three hundred fifty (350) ton and over; Crane, four hundred (400) ton and over

## Group 2

Asphalt Plant (any type); Asphalt Roto-Mill, pavement profiler eight foot (8') lateral cut and over; Auto Grader or ""Trimmer""; Blade, Robotic; Bulldozer, Robotic Equipment (any type); Bulldozer, over one hundred twenty thousand (120,000) lbs. and above; Concrete Batch Plant and/or Wet

beta.SAM.gov Page 10 of 26

Mix one (1) and two (2) drum; Concrete Diamond Head Profiler; Canal Trimmer; Concrete, Automatic Slip Form Paver (Assistant to the Operator required); Crane, Boom Truck fifty (50) ton and with over one hundred fifty foot (150') boom and over; Crane, Floating (derrick barge) thirty (30) ton but less than one hundred fifty (150) ton; Crane, Cableway twenty-five (25) ton and over; Crane, Floating Clamshell three (3) cu. Yds. And over; Crane, ninety (90) ton through one hundred ninety nine (199) ton up to and including two hundred foot (200') of boom (including jib inserts and/or attachments); Crane, fifty (50) ton through eighty nine (89) ton with over one hundred fifty foot (150') boom (including jib inserts and/or attachments); Crane, Whirley under ninety (90) ton; Crusher Plant; Excavator over one hundred thirty thousand (130,000) lbs.; Loader one hundred twenty thousand (120,000) lbs. and above; Remote Controlled Earth Moving Equipment; Shovel, Dragline, Clamshell, five (5) cu. Yds. And over; Underwater Equipment remote or otherwise, when used in construction work; Wheel Excavator any size

#### Group 3

Bulldozer, over seventy thousand (70,000) lbs. up to and including one hundred twenty thousand (120,000) lbs.;

Crane, Boom Truck fifty (50) ton and over with less than one hundred fifty foot (150') boom; Crane, fifty (50) ton through eighty nine (89) ton with one hundred fifty foot (150') boom or less (including jib inserts and/or attachments); Crane, Shovel, Dragline or Clamshell three (3) cu. yds. but less than five (5) cu. Yds.; Excavator over eighty thousand (80,000) lbs. through one hundred thirty thousand (130,000) lbs.; Loader sixty thousand (60,000) lbs. and less than one hundred twenty thousand (120,000) lbs.

### Group 4

Asphalt, Screed; Asphalt Paver; Asphalt Roto-Mill, pavement profiler, under eight foot (8') lateral cut; Asphalt,

beta.SAM.gov Page 11 of 26

Material Transfer Vehicle Operator; Back Filling Machine; Backhoe, Robotic, track and wheel type up to and including twenty thousand (20,000) lbs. with any attachments; Blade (any type); Boatman; Boring Machine; Bulldozer over twenty thousand (20,000) lbs. and more than one hundred (100) horse up to seventy thousand (70,000) lbs.; Cable-Plow (any type); Cableway up to twenty five (25) ton; Cat Drill (John Henry); Chippers; Compactor, multi-engine; Compactor, Robotic; Compactor with blade self-propelled; Concrete, Breaker; Concrete, Grout Plant; Concrete, Mixer Mobile; Concrete, Paving Road Mixer; Concrete, Reinforced Tank Banding Machine; Crane, Boom Truck twenty (20) ton and under fifty (50) ton; Crane, Bridge Locomotive, Gantry and Overhead; Crane, Carry Deck; Crane, Chicago Boom and similar types; Crane, Derrick Operator, under one hundred (100) ton; Crane, Floating Clamshell, Dragline, etc. Operator, under three (3) cu. yds. Or less than thirty (30) ton; Crane, under fifty (50) ton; Crane, Quick Tower under one hundred foot (100') in height and less than one hundred fifty foot (150') jib (on rail included); Diesel-Electric Engineer (Plant or Floating); Directional Drill over twenty thousand (20,000) lbs. pullback; Drill Cat Operator; Drill Doctor and/or Bit Grinder; Driller, Percussion, Diamond, Core, Cable, Rotary and similar type; Excavator Operator over twenty thousand (20,000) lbs. through eighty thousand (80,000) lbs.; Generator Operator; Grade-all; Guardrail Machines, i.e. punch, auger, etc.; Hammer Operator (Piledriver); Hoist, stiff leg, guy derrick or similar type, fifty (50) ton and over; Hoist, two (2) drums or more; Hydro Axe (loader mounted or similar type); Jack Operator, Elevating Barges, Barge Operator, self-unloading; Loader Operator, front end and overhead, twenty five thousand (25,000) lbs. and less than sixty thousand (60,000) lbs.; Log Skidders; Piledriver Operator (not crane type); Pipe, Bending, Cleaning, Doping and Wrapping Machines; Rail, Ballast Tamper Multi-Purpose; Rubber-tired Dozers and Pushers; Scraper, all types; Side-Boom; Skip Loader, Drag Box; Strump Grinder (loader mounted or similar type); Surface Heater and Planer; Tractor, rubber-tired,

beta.SAM.gov Page 12 of 26

over fifty (50) HP Flywheel; Trenching Machine three foot (3') depth and deeper; Tub Grinder (used for wood debris); Tunnel Boring Machine Mechanic; Tunnel, Mucking Machine; Ultra High Pressure Water Jet Cutting Tool System Operator; Vacuum Blasting Machine Operator; Water pulls, Water wagons

Group 5

Asphalt, Extrusion Machine; Asphalt, Roller (any asphalt mix); Asphalt, Roto-Mill pavement profiler ground man; Bulldozer, twenty thousand (20,000) lbs. or less, or one hundred (100) horse or less; Cement Pump; Chip Spreading Machine; Churn Drill and Earth Boring Machine; Compactor, self-propelled without blade; Compressor, (any power) one thousand two hundred fifty (1,250) cu. ft. and over, total capacity; Concrete, Batch Plant Quality control; Concrete, Combination Mixer and compressor operator, gunite work; Concrete, Curb Machine, Mechanical Berm, Curb and/or Curb and Gutter; Concrete, Finishing Machine; Concrete, Grouting Machine; Concrete, Internal Full Slab Vibrator Operator; Concrete, Joint Machine; Concrete, Mixer single drum, any capacity; Concrete, Paving Machine eight foot (8') or less; Concrete, Planer; Concrete, Pump; Concrete, Pump Truck; Concrete, Pumpcrete Operator (any type); Concrete, Slip Form Pumps, power driven hydraulic lifting device for concrete forms; Conveyored Material Hauler; Crane, Boom Truck under twenty (20) tons; Crane, Boom Type lifting device, five (5) ton capacity or less; Drill, Directional type less than twenty thousand (20,000) lbs. pullback; Fork Lift, over ten (10) ton or Robotic; Helicopter Hoist; Hoist Operator, single drum; Hydraulic Backhoe track type up to and including twenty thousand (20,000) lbs.; Hydraulic Backhoe wheel type (any make); Laser Screed; Loaders, rubber-tired type, less than twenty five thousand (25,000) lbs.; Pavement Grinder and/or Grooving Machine (riding type); Pipe, cast in place Pipe Laying Machine; Pulva-Mixer or similar types; Pump Operator, more than five (5) pumps (any size); Rail, Ballast Compactor, Regulator, or Tamper machines; Service Oiler (Greaser); Sweeper Self-Propelled;

beta.SAM.gov Page 13 of 26

Tractor, Rubber-Tired, fifty (50) HP flywheel and under; Trenching Machine Operator, maximum digging capacity three foot (3') depth; Tunnel, Locomotive, Dinkey; Tunnel, Power Jumbo setting slip forms, etc.

Group 6

Asphalt, Pugmill (any type); Asphalt, Raker; Asphalt, Truck
Mounted Asphalt Spreader, with Screed; Auger Oiler;
Boatman; Bobcat, skid steed (less than one (1) yard);
Broom, self-propelled; Compressor Operator (any power)
under 1,250 cu. ft. total capacity; Concrete Curing Machine
(riding type); Concrete Saw; Conveyor Operator or
Assistant; Crane, Tugger; Crusher Feederman; Crusher Oiler;
Deckhand; Drill, Directional Locator; Fork Lift; Grade
Checker; Guardrail Punch Oiler; Hydrographic Seeder
Machine, straw, pulp or seed; Hydrostatic Pump Operator;
Mixer Box (CTB, dry batch, etc.); Oiler; Plant Oiler; Pump
(any power); Rail, Brakeman, Switchman, Motorman; Rail,
Tamping Machine, mechanical, self-propelled; Rigger; Roller
grading (not asphalt); Truck, Crane Oiler-Driver

IRON0029-004 05/01/2018

Rates Fringes

IRONWORKER.....\$ 37.00 27.87

\* LABO0737-001 06/01/2019

Rates Fringes

Mason Tender/Hod Carrier

Tenders to Bricklayers,

Tile Setters, Marble

Setters and Terrazzo

Workers, Topping for

Cement Finishers and

beta.SAM.gov Page 14 of 26

```
Mortar Mixers.....$ 31.56
                                             14.60
______
LABO0737-008 06/01/2018
ZONE 1:
LABORERS (SEE FOOTNOTE C)
                                           Fringes
                              Rates
Laborers:
    GROUP 1.....$ 29.70
                                             13.82
    GROUP 2.....$ 30.81
                                             13.82
    GROUP 3.....$ 25.77
                                             13.82
Zone Differential (Add to Zone 1 rates):
Zone 2 - $0.85
Zone 3 - 2.00
Zone 4 - 3.00
Zone 5 - 5.00
 ZONE 1 - All jobs or projects located within 30 miles of the
 respective City Hall
 ZONE 2 - More than 30 miles and less than 40 miles from the
 respective City Hall
 ZONE 3 - More than 40 miles and less than 50 miles from the
 respective City Hall
 ZONE 4 - More than 50 miles and less than 80 miles from the
 respective City Hall
ZONE 5 - More than 80 miles from the respective City Hall.
BASEPOINTS:
                                    BAKER CITY
ALBANY
                   ASTORIA
BEND
                   BURNS
                                    COOS BAY
EUGENE
                   GRANTS PASS
                                    HERMISTON
```

beta.SAM.gov Page 15 of 26

KLAMATH FALLS MEDFORD PENDLETON
PORTLAND ROSEBURG SALEM

THE DALLES

#### LABORER CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: Applicator (including Pot Tender for same) applying protective material by hand or nozzle on utility lines or storage tanks on project, Asphalt Plant; Asphalt Spreader; Batch Weighman; Broomers; Brush Burners and Cutters; Choker Setter; Choker Splicer; Clary Power Spreader; Clean-up Laborer; Clean up Nozzleman (concrete, rock, etc); Concrete Laborer; Crusher Feeder; Curing, Concrete; Demolition, wrecking, and moving; Dopping and Wrapping Pipe; Dumpman (for Grading Crew); Erosion Control Specialist; Fine Graders; Fence Builders; Form Strippers; Guard Rail, Median Rail, Barriers, Reference Post, Guide Post, Right of Way Marker; Remote Control (Dry Pack Machine, Jackhammer, Chipping Guns, Compaction, Paving Breakers, Hand Held Concrete Saw, Demo Saw, Core Drill); Precast Concrete Setter; Pressure Washer; Railroad Track Laborer; Ribbon Setter; Rip Rap Map; Sand Blasting (Wet); Scaffold Tender; Self Propelled Concrete Buggy; Sewer Laborer; Sign Erector; Signalman; Scissor and Manlift; Skipman; Slopers; Sprayman; Stake Chaser; Stake Setter; Tamper; Timber Faller and Bucker; Tool Operators (Hand Held, Walk Behind)

GROUP 2: Asbestos Removal; Asphalt Rakers, Bit Grinder,
Concrete Core Drill, Concrete Pump Nozzleman, Concrete Saw
Operator (Walk Behind, Walk Saw, Rail Mounted, Wire); Drill
Operator; Grade Checker; Gunite Nozzleman; Hazardous Waste
Laborer; High Scalers; Laser Bean (Pipe Laying); Loop
Installation; Manhole Builder; Mold Remediation Laborer;
Nippers and Timberman; Pipelayer; Powderman; Power Saw
Operators (Bucking and Falling); Pumpcrete Nozzleman; Sand
Blasting (Dry); Sewer Timberman; Tugger Operator;
Vibrators; Water Blaster

beta.SAM.gov Page 16 of 26

```
GROUP 3: Final Clean-up(detailed clean-up, limited to cleaning up floors, ceilings, walls, windows-prior to acceptance by the owner); Fire Watch; Landscaper; Traffic Flagger
```

#### FOOTNOTE C:

HANDLING OF HAZARDOUS WAST MATERIALS - Personnel in all craft classifications subject to working inside a federally designated Hazardous Waste perimeter shall be eligible for compensation in accordance with the following group schedule relative to the level of Hazardous Waste as outline in the specific Hazardous Waste Project Site Safety Plan:

 $\mbox{H-1}$  Base Wage Rate when on a hazardous waste site when not outfitted with protective clothing.

H-2 Class ""C"" Suit - Basic hourly wage rate plus \$1.00 per hour, fringes plus \$0.15.

H-3 Class ""B"" Suit - Basic hourly wage rate plus \$1.50 per hour, fringes plus \$0.15.

H-4 Class ""A"" Suit -Basic hourly wage rate plus \$2.00 per hour, fringes plus \$0.15.

------

PAIN0055-002 07/01/2018

Rates Fringes

PAINTER

HIGHWAY & PARKING LOT

STRIPER.....\$ 35.02 12.06

\_\_\_\_\_

beta.SAM.gov Page 17 of 26

PAIN0055-033 07/01/2018

	Rates	Fringes
PAINTER		
BAKER, BENTON, CLATSOP,		
CROOK, DESCHUTES, GRANT,		
GILLIAM, HARNEY,		
JEFFERSON, LAKE, LANE,		
LINN, LINCOLN, MALHEUR,		
MARION, POLK, TILLAMOOK,		
SHERMAN, UNION, WHEELER		
AND YAMHILL COUNTIES		
High work-All work 60		
feet or higher	\$ 24.26	11.94
Painters	\$ 22.47	10.10
BENTON, LANE, LINN,		
JEFFERSON, WHEELER, CROOK,	,	
DESCHUTES, BAKER, MALHEUR,		
GRANT, LAKE, LINCOLN,		
HARNEY, CLATSOP, GILLIAM,		
MARION, POLK, TILLAMOOK,		
SHERMAN, UNION, AND		
YAMHILL COUNTIES		
Painters	\$ 22.51	11.94
CLACKAMAS, COLUMBIA, HOOD		
RIVER, MULTNOMAH, MORROW,		
UMATILLA, WALLOWA, WASCO		
AND WASHINTON COUNTIES		
High work-All work 60		
feet or higher	\$ 25.46	11.94
Painters	\$ 24.26	11.94
JACKSON AND KLAMATH		
COUNTIES		
High Work-All Work 60		
feet or higher	\$ 22.46	11.94
Painters	\$ 20.51	11.94
DIACO555_001 06/01/2018		

PLAS0555-001 06/01/2018

beta.SAM.gov Page 18 of 26

ZONE 1:

	Rates	Fringes
Cement Masons: (ZONE 1)		
CEMENT MASONS DOING BOTH		
COMPOSITION/POWER		
MACHINERY AND		
SUSPENDED/HANGING SCAFFOLI	0\$ 36.33	18.17
CEMENT MASONS ON		
SUSPENDED, SWINGING AND/OR	₹	
HANGING SCAFFOLD	\$ 35.63	18.17
CEMENT MASONS	\$ 34.93	18.17
COMPOSITION WORKERS AND		
POWER MACHINERY OPERATORS	\$ 32.19	17.62
Zone Differential (Add To Zone	1 Rates):	
Zone 2 - \$0.65		
Zone 3 - 1.15		
Zone 4 - 1.70		
Zone 5 - 3.00		
BASE POINTS: BEND, CORVALLIS	S, EUGENE, MEDFORD	, PORTLAND,
ZONE 1: Projects within 30 mil	les of the respect	ive city hall
ZONE 2: More than 30 miles k	out less than 40 m	iles from the
respective city hall.		
ZONE 3: More than 40 miles k	out less than 50 m	iles from the
respective city hall.		
ZONE 4: More than 50 miles k	out less than 80 m	iles from the
respective city hall.		
ZONE 5: More than 80 miles from	om the respective	city hall

```
TEAM0037-004 06/01/2018
ZONE 1:
TRUCK DRIVERS (See Footnote C):
                              Rates
                                          Fringes
Truck drivers:
    GROUP 1.....$ 28.52
                                             14.62
    GROUP 2.....$ 28.64
                                             14.62
    GROUP 3.....$ 28.78
                                             14.62
    GROUP 4.....$ 29.05
                                             14.62
    GROUP 5.....$ 29.27
                                             14.62
    GROUP 6.....$ 29.45
                                             14.62
    GROUP 7.....$ 29.65
                                             14.62
Zone Differential (add to Zone 1 rates):
Zone 2 - $0.65
Zone 3 - 1.15
Zone 4 - 1.70
Zone 5 - 2.75
 Zone 1 - All jobs or projects located within 30 miles of the
 respective City Hall
 Zone 2 - More than 30 miles and less than 40 miles from the
 respective City Hall
 Zone 3 - More than 40 miles and less than 50 miles from the
 respective City Hall
 Zone 4 - More than 50 miles and less than 80 miles from the
 respective City Hall
Zone 5 - More than 80 miles from the respective City Hall
BASEPOINTS:
```

beta.SAM.gov Page 20 of 26

ALBANY ASTORIA BAKER

BEND BINGEN BROOKINGS

BURNS COOS BAY CORVALLIS

EUGENE GOLDENDALE GRANTS PASS

HERMISTON HOOD RIVER KLAMATH FALLS

LAGRANDE LAKEVIEW LONGVIEW

AGRANDE LAKEVIEW LONGVIEW

MADRAS MEDFORD MCMINNVILLE

OREGON CITY NEWPORT ONTARIO

PENDLETON PORTLAND PORT ORFORD

REEDSPORT ROSEBURG SALEM

THE DALLES TILLAMOOK VANCOUVER

### TRUCK DRIVER CLASSIFICATIONS

GROUP 1: A-frame or hydra-lift truck w/load bearing surface; Articulated dump truck; Battery rebuilders; Bus or manhaul driver; Concrete buggies (power operated); Concrete pump truck; Dump trucks, side, end and bottom dumps, including semi-trucks and trains or combinations thereof: up to and including 10 cu. yds.; Lift jitneys, fork lifts (all sizes in loading, unloading and transporting material on job site); Loader and/or leverman on concrete dry batch plant (manually operated); Lubrication man, fuel truck driver, tireman, wash rack, steam cleaner or combination; Pilot car; Pickup truck; Slurry truck driver or leverman; Solo flat bed and misc. body truck, 0-10 tons; Team drivers; Tireman; Transit mix and wet or dry mix trucks: 5 cu yds. and under; Water wagons (rated capacity) up to 3,000 gallons

GROUP 2: Boom truck/hydra-lift or retracting crane;
Challenger; Dumpsters or similar equipment-all sizes; Dump
trucks/articulated dumps 6 cu to 10 cu.; Flaherty spreader
driver or leverman; Low bed equipment, flat bed semi-truck
and trailer or doubles transporting equipment or wet or dry
materials; Lumber carrier, driver-straddle carrier (used in
loading, unloading and transporting of materials on job
site); Oil distributor driver or leverman; Transit mix and
wet or dry mix trucks: over 5 cy yds and including 7 cu.
yds; Vacuum trucks; Water Wagons (rated capacity) over

beta.SAM.gov Page 21 of 26

3,000 to 5,000 gallons

GROUP 3: Ammonia nitrate distributor driver; Dump trucks, side, end and bottom dumps, including semi-trucks and trains or combinations thereof: over 10 cu. yds. and including 30 cu. yds., includes articulated dump trucks; Self-Propelled street sweeper; Transit mix and wet or dry mix trucks, over 7 cu. yds. and including 11 cu. yds.; truck mechanic-Welder-Body repairman; Utility and clean-up truck; Water wagons (rated capacity) 5,000 to 10,000 gallons.

GROUP 4: Asphalt Bruner; Dump trucks, side, end and bottom dumps, including semi-trucks and trains or combinations thereof: over 30 cu. yds. and including 50 cu. yds. includes articulated dump trucks; Fire guard; Transit Mix and Wet or Dry Mix Trucks, over 11 cu. yds. and including 15 cu. yds.; Water Wagon (rated capacity) over 10,000 gallons to 15,000 gallons

GROUP 5: Composite Crewman; Dump trucks, side, end and bottom dumps, including semi-trucks and trains or combinations thereof: over 50 cu. yds. and including 60 cu. yds., includes articulated dump trucks

GROUP 6: Bulk cement spreader w/o auger; Dry Pre-Batch concrete mix trucks; Dump trucks, side, end and bottom dumps, including semi-trucks and trains of combinations thereof: over 60 cu. yds. and including 80 cu. yds. and includes articulated dump trucks; Skid truck

GROUP 7: Dump trucks, side, end and bottom dumps, including semi-trucks and trains or combinations thereof: over 80 cu. yds. and including 100 cu. yds. includes articulated dump trucks; Industrial lift truck (mechanical tailgate)

FOOTNOTE C:

HANDLING OF HAZARDOUS WAST MATERIALS - (LABORERS, POWER

beta.SAM.gov Page 22 of 26

EQUIPMENT OPERATORS, AND TRUCK DRIVERS): Personnel in all craft classifications subject to working inside a federally designated Hazardous Waste perimeter shall be eligible for compensation in accordance with the following group schedule relative to the level of Hazardous Waste as outline in the specific Hazardous Waste Project Site Safety Plan:

H-1 Base Wage Rate when on a hazardous waste site when not outfitted with protective clothing.

H-2 Class ""C"" Suit - Basic hourly wage rate plus \$1.00 per hour, fringes plus \$0.15.

H-3 Class ""B"" Suit - Basic hourly wage rate plus \$1.50 per hour, fringes plus \$0.15.

H-4 Class ""A"" Suit -Basic hourly wage rate plus \$2.00 per hour, fringes plus \$0.15.

-----

SUOR1991-003 04/01/1991

	Rates	Fringes	
Timber Sales Roads:			
LABORERS	\$ 8.35	4.30	
OPERATING ENGINEERS	\$ 10.37	4.15	
POWER SAW, DRILLER,			
POWDERMAN	\$ 9.12	4.30	
TEAMSTERS	\$ 9.74	3.74	

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing operation to which welding is incidental.

------

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave

beta.SAM.gov Page 23 of 26

for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017. If this contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year. Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking. Additional information on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO is available at www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within the scope of the classifications listed may be added after award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses (29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)).

------

The body of each wage determination lists the classification and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical order of ""identifiers"" that indicate whether the particular rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local), a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate (weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed in dotted lines beginning with characters other than ""SU"" or

beta.SAM.gov Page 24 of 26

""UAVG"" denotes that the union classification and rate were prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example:
PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of the union which prevailed in the survey for this classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198 indicates the local union number or district council number where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number, 005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1, 2014.

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the ""SU"" identifier indicate that no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that classification. As this weighted average rate includes all rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate

beta.SAM.gov Page 25 of 26

that no single majority rate prevailed for those classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010 08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is based.

-----

#### WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can be:

- \* an existing published wage determination
- \* a survey underlying a wage determination
- \* a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on a wage determination matter
- \* a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour Regional Office for the area in which the survey was conducted because those Regional Offices have responsibility for the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal process described here, initial contact should be with the

beta.SAM.gov Page 26 of 26

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations. Write to:

Branch of Construction Wage Determinations
Wage and Hour Division
U.S. Department of Labor
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an interested party (those affected by the action) can request review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator (See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

Wage and Hour Administrator
U.S. Department of Labor
200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the interested party's position and by any information (wage payment data, project description, area practice material, etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board). Write to:

Administrative Review Board U.S. Department of Labor 200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

END OF GENERAL DECISION"

## APPENDIX D

# CERTIFICATE FROM CONTRACTOR APPOINTING OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE TO SUPERVISE PAYMENT OF EMPLOYEE - HUD FORM 5282

**Certificate from Contractor Appointing** U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Officer or Employee to Supervise Office of Public and Indian Housing Payment of Employee Replaces form PHA-282, which is obsolete with form HUD-5282 (8/67) Project Name: Sunrise Park Path Date (mm/dd/yyyy): Location: <u>2275 Thurston Street SE, Albany, OR</u> Project No: <u>PK-19-01</u> (I/We) hereby certify that (I am) (we are) (the prime contractor) (a subcontractor) for \_\_\_\_\_\_(specify "General Construction," "Roofing," etc.) in connection with construction of the above-mentioned Sunrise Park Path (PK-19-01) Project, and that (I) (we) have appointed signature appears below, to supervise the payment of (my) (our) employees beginning (Date: mm/dd/yyyy)\_ ; That he/she is in a position to have full knowledge of the facts set forth in the payroll documents and in the statement of compliance required by the so-called Kick-Back Statute which he/she is to execute with (my) (our) full authority and approval until such time as (I)(we) submit to the City of Albany a new certificate appointing some other person for the purposes hereinabove stated. (Identifying Signature of Appointee) (Name of Firm or Corporation) Attest (Not Required) By: (Signature) (Signature) (Title) (Title) (Date: mm/dd/yyyy) (Date: mm/dd/yyyy)

**Note**: This certificate must be executed by an authorized officer of a corporation or by a member of a partnership, and shall be executed prior to and be submitted with the first payroll. Should the appointee be changed, a new certificate must accompany the first payroll for which the new appointee executes a statement of compliance required by the Kick-Back Statute.

## APPENDIX E

## CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Project Name: PK-19-01, Sunrise Park Path

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- A. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement.
- **B.** If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- C. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

Signed (Contractor)		
Title / Firm		
Date		